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SPECIAL NOTE ON FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report contains forward-looking statataevithin the meaning of Section 27A of the StearAct of 1933, as amended, and Section 21Eeof th
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, adlgptesuant to the Private Securities Litigation &ef Act of 1995. Statements that are not puredyohical may
be forward-looking. You can identify some forwéydking statements by the use of words such aselzd,” “anticipates,” “expects,” “intends” and siritar
expressions. Forward-looking statements involbeiant risks and uncertainties regarding eventsditions and financial trends that may affect autufe plans of
operation, business strategy, results of operatams financial position. A number of importanttfars could cause actual results to differ mateyidiom those
included within or contemplated by such forwardKiog statements, including, but not limited to sisklating to the uncertainty of growth in marketaptance for
our technology, a history of losses since inceptiam ability to remain competitive in responsentw technologies, the costs to defend, as welkks of losing,
patents and intellectual property rights, our custr concentration and dependence on a limited nowibeustomers, a reliance on our future custor ability to
develop and sell products that incorporate our teadhgy, the uncertainty of demand for our technglgcertain markets, the length of a product depeient and
release cycle, our ability to manage growth effesti, our dependence on key members of our manageme development team, uncertainties regardinmesgion
or other corporate transactions, and our abilitydbtain adequate capital to fund future operatidfsr a discussion of these and other factors tlatd cause actual
results to differ from those contemplated in thevéod-looking statements, please see “ltem 1Ak Ractors” and elsewhere in this Annual Reportg am our
publicly available filings with the Securities aBdchange Commission. Forwelooking statements reflect our analysis only athefdate of this Annual
Report. Actual events or results may differ mathrifrom the results discussed in or implied by thrwarc-looking statements. We do not undertake any redpbiy:
to update or revise any of these factors or to amoe publicly any revisions to forward-looking staents, whether as a result of new informationiréuévents or
otherwise.

PART I
ITEM 1. BUSINESS

Neonode Inc. (collectively with its subsidiariesréferred to in this Annual Report as “Neonode&/e™, “us”, “our”, the “registrant”, or the “Compatly
develops and licenses user interfaces and optifrareéd touch technology. Our patented technotftgrs multiple features including the ability terse an object’s
size, depth, velocity, pressure, and proximityrig gype of surface. We license our multi-touch teslbgy to Original Equipment Manufacturers (“OEMsfjda
Original Design Manufacturers (“ODMs”) who incorpagat into devices that they produce and sell. OEBR$ ODMs use our touch technology in controller shije
developed in collaboration with Texas Instrumemsighed specifically for our touch technology. @gahnology licensing model allows us to focusom t
development of solutions for touchscreens and tenabled surfaces. We do not manufacture produaemponents.

As of December 31, 2013, we had thirty-three tetdgylicense agreements with global OEMs and ODMselVesof our customers are currently shipping
products and we anticipate other customers wiildté product shipments as they complete theit fireduct development and release cycle througBou4 and
2015. In addition, we are currently developingtptgpe products and are engaged in product engimgedesign discussions with numerous global OEMs@bi1s
who are in the process of qualifying our touch tesbgy for incorporation in various products susHaptop computers, all-in-one computers and stédode monitor:
running Microsoft Windows 8 and Google Chrome opreasystems, printer products, GPS devices, e-Reatddlets, touch panels for automobiles, houskhol
appliances, mobile phones, wearable electronicaggand toys. The development and release cyctadse products typically takes six to thirty-sigmths.




Our Company

Neonode Inc., formerly known as SBE, Inc., was ipocated in the State of Delaware on Septembe®2/.1 SBE’s name was changed to Neonode Inc. upon
the completion of a merger on August 10, 2007 betw®BE and the parent company of Neonode AB, a aoypnfounded in February 2004 and incorporated in
Sweden. As a result of the merger, the busines®paxhtions of Neonode AB became the primary basiaad operations of the newly-combined NeonodeTlme
Company’s headquarters is located in Santa Clatifo@ia, USA.

On December 29, 2008, we acquired as a subsidieopdtle Technologies AB (“NTAB”) to develop and fise touchscreen technology. In 2013, we
established additional subsidiaries: Neonode Kip#&h) (“NJK”); Neno User Interface Solutions AB @&¥en) (“NUIAB”); NEON Technology Inc. (U.S.) (“NT)}
and Neonode Americas Inc. (U.S.) (“NAI").

On September 3, 2013, we announced that the Bé@textors has authorized the exploration of siat alternatives with respect to our user-intexfac
patent and licensing business. This intellectoaperty portfolio principally relates to touchsanegserinterface gestures. The Board of Directors intdndsonsider i
broad range of alternatives including, but notiédito, a merger, sale, or spin-off. There candassurance that the Board of Directors’ evalagtimcess will result
in any transaction, or that any transaction, ifsped, will be consummated.

Touch Technology

There are various technologies for touaestrand touch-enabled surfaces available in theanaith differing profiles, power consumption, &hof
maturity, and cost. The types of touch technolegienerally include the following:

« Capacitivetouchscreens are coated with a material, typiéathum tin oxide, which conducts a continuous eieat current which senses distortions
detect a touck

« Resistivetouchscreens use conductive and resistive laypesa@d by thin spac

« Optical infraredtouch technology uses infrared beams that are hrbiehe finger or heat from the finger to detettach.

« Surface acoustic wavtouchscreens use ultrasonic waves that pass avacthen

« Strain gaugetouchscreens use a spring mounted on the four amel strain gauges are used to determine deftestien the screen is touch

« Optical imagingtouchscreens use two or more image sensors or aampkced around the edges (mostly the cornetbeafcreen and a light source
create a shadow of the fing

« In-celltouch technology embeds photo sensors or condusttinsors directly into a Liquid Crystal Displaysgawhich acts like a low-resolution camera
to “se¢’ the shadow of the finge

« Dispersive signatouch technology uses sensors to detect the measztiamergy in the glass that occur due to a tc

« Acoustic pulse recognitiotouch technology uses more than two piezoelectiitsducers located at some positions of the s¢oetemn the mechanic:
energy of a touch (vibration) into an electrongrsil.

The two dominant types of touchscreen technoloavedable in the market are capacitive and regsti@apacitive technology is the technology usetién
Apple iPhone. Resistive technology is the techgplased in many automatic teller machines. A ciipadouchscreen reacts to the finger's electipulses.
Capacitive touchscreens are suitable if the useuhanpeded contact between the finger and thescreresistive touchscreen is pressure-sensifResistive
touchscreens are suitable for detailed work anddtection of a particular spot on a screen. Resitechnology is not useful for sweeping gesturesiotion, such as
zooming in and out.

Our Solution
Optical Infrared
We offer optical infrared touch technology. We elep and license user interfaces and optical ieftéaouch solutions. Our optical infrared touch tetbgy

projects infrared light over and across a touclestend other types of surface at rates of up @0ltitnes per second. Our optical infrared touchnetogy utilizes
low power consumption and enables pressure senmiogimity sensing, and 3D sensing.




Other touch technologies such as capacitive anstikesrequire a physical layer, typically coveritige screen, in order to detect touches. In centoar
optical infrared technology projects only invisiltight across the screen. Our optical infrarethbedogy also can be used on surfaces other thaerserWe believe
our optical touch technology has a number of kexaathges over other touch technologies:

« Our optical touch technology does not add addititmyeers to the screen that may dilute the screerast and clarity. Layering technology is reqdite
activate the capacitive and resistive technologrescan be very costl

« Our optical touch technology is more responsiva ttepacitive screen technology and, as a resujtjicker and less prone to misres

« Our optical touch technology tracks continuous nmoset and sweeping motions as compared to «~based resistive screens that provide only dis
touch locations

« Our optical touch technology requires no downwaessgure on the screen in order to select or mewgsion the screen in contrast to resis
touchscreens

« Our optical touch technology is c-efficient due to the lower cost of materials anélatively simple manufacturing process comparedyered
capacitive and resistive scree

« Our optical touch technology enables multiple mdthof input, such as simple finger taps to hit keygeeps to zoom in or out, and gestures to wake
or symbols directly on the scree

« Our optical touch technology works in all climatesd can be used with thick gloves; ¢

« Our optical touch technology can provide touch fiomality for waterproof devices.

Controller Chips

We do not produce controller chips or other comptsmeUnder our licensing model, our OEM and ODM ecors use customized single optical infrared
controller chips developed in collaboration withx@e Instruments designed specifically for our @tiouch technology. The NN1001 the first generatiptical
controller chip, was developed pursuant to an Am&levice Development Agreement entered into ond@agrd, 2011 and effective as of January 24, 2@t@den
Neonode and Texas Instruments. The NN1001 begapisbito customers in May 2012. The NN1002 the gexeration optical controller chip, is being deped
pursuant to an Analog Device Development Agreeraatdred into April 25, 2013 effective December @12 between Neonode and Texas Instruments. We &tke
NNZ1002 will begin shipping to customers in 2014eT¥N1001 and NN1002 can only be sold to customérs lmave a technology license agreement with Nean«

The NN1001 and NN1002 controller chips are designesimplify integration, reduce cost, and increpsdormance. We believe the NN1001 and NN1002
controller chips outperform other touch solutioha éower cost.

« The NN1001 and NN1002 have scanning speeds of B@Q@tency down to 1ms

« The NN1001 and NN1002 track any F-speed mul-touch gesture with any object (finger, gloved finged passive pens) with high accure
« The NN1001 and NN1002 support advanced power mamagteand enables touch detection even when theeal&yvin sleep or off mod

« The NN1001 and NN1002 consume less than 1mW at 4(

Our Market
e-Readers and Tablets

Our touch technology is widely used in e-Read&isice 2011, more than 16 million e-Reader unitetshipped containing our touch technology by
customers such Amazon, Kobo, Barnes & Noble, Sktundo, Deutsche Telekom and Netronix. Our technpkidgo is used in tablets. Sony is currently siniga
13.3 inch writing tablet named “Digital Paper” thategrates our technology. Customers such asRregEnterprises and Oregon Scientific are shippabdets for
children that integrate our technology. Other aomrs are currently in the product development @fiasused on children’s tablets and we expect wikyegin
shipping in 2014.




Printers and Office Equipment

Photo printers and combination printer/scannenffiachines typically require feature-rich menus attrgys, and OEMs have increasingly replaced
mechanical buttons with resistive touchscreen digplOur touch technology offers an improved ugpegence, a brighter display, ultra-light touchdaupport for
gestures, such as swipe to access menus and scWerfzave technology license agreements with titbeotop five global leading printer and officeuggment
OEMSs. The first consumer printer with our touchhtealogy started mass production in December 20¥8.expect other customers will have printers afidef
equipment ready for retail rollouts throughout 2@hdl 2015.

Computers and Monitors

Our touch technology is suitable for laptops, pead computers, all-in-one computers and standeatoonitors. We have technology license agreensars
are in product design activities with several tiee computer and monitor OEMs that we expect wijibbehipping selected products in 2014 with afutiduct
release ramp in 2015. Our multi-touch solutionlémtops, PCs, all-in-ones and stand- alone manitoMicrosoft Windows 8.1 certified. We also are@@leping
Chromebook laptop reference designs for selectgthtdogy providers.

Mobile Phones, Wearables and Accessories, Games

We have developed a touch and proximity sensont#ofy platform for mobile phones that enablesrgaraction not only on the screen but also theespac
around and above the mobile phone. We are curreanflyoduct design activities with tier one and ti@o mobile phone handset makers, such as Shenrher, who
are developing both smart and feature phone hantisgtwe expect will enter production and begipghg in 2014. We also believe our touch techgylis suitable
for smart watches, fitness devices, activity traskenedical monitors, multifunction keyboards aratking devices, and gaming and toy products.

Automotive

Touch interface displays are becoming standardainynautomotive vehicles. Touch interface displaysehicles must operate in a wide range of ambient
lighting and temperature conditions. Our opticéldared touch solutions are positioned to make idsda the automotive market by providing brightanre readable
displays, with a full operating temperature rartgg tan be used while wearing gloves. In the seqoadter of 2013, Volvo began offering a touch éediHuman
Machine Interfaces (“HMI") infotainment system asealér installed aftermarket retrofit product the¢siour touch technology. We currently are in dismns with
many of the global automotive OEMs and their tiee soppliers to develop automotive HMI, infotainmantl navigation systems. These projects typicalyehang
development cycles that can take as long as foliveg/ears before any meaningful production andrse fee generation will occur.

Home Electronics

Mechanical buttons, dials and membrane switchdsysiitly control machines in the kitchen and layndom. New designs can use our optical infrared
touch technology with or without an underlying désp For example, touch sensitive buttons can béged by placing the light guide around a pretedrarray. A
touch panel can include illumination without a désp A feature-rich device like a high-end dryande made much more streamlined and user friemitiya touch
display. We currently are in discussions with OER$he home electronics market who are designingit@mable products such as kitchen stovetops, @rehs
laundry room washers and dryers. These projecisajyp have long development cycles that can takeag as four to five years.




Distribution, Sales and Marketing

We consider both OEMs and ODMs to be our primaryausts. OEMs and ODMs determine the design requirenagrd make the overall decision
regarding the use of our user interface and toechrnology and in their products. The use and griofour user interface and touch technology aregeed by a
technology licensing agreement.

Our sales staff solicits prospective customersranéives substantial technical assistance and siuffppm our internal engineering resources becatisiee
highly technical nature of our product solutionse ¥kpect that sales will frequently result from sales efforts that involve senior managementgdesngineers, and
our sales personnel interacting with our potemtistomers’ decision-makers throughout the prodeecebpment and order process.

Our sales are normally negotiated and executed$n Dollars or Euros.

Our sales force and marketing operations are managfeof our office in Stockholm, Sweden. Our catrgales force is comprised of sales offices |latate
Sweden, South Korea and Japan.

Technology Agreements

As of December 31, 2013, we have entered intoytimtee technology license agreements compareseoty-four and twelve technology license agreements
as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively pfdducts related to these license agreementsda@tReaders, tablets, mobile phones, commerdalat@msumer
printers, automotive consoles, home appliances, aogl games and GPS devices.

We are dependent on a limited number of OEM and OD#&larners and the loss of any one of these custaroald have a material adverse effect on our
future revenue stream. In the short term, we guatie that we remain dependent on a limited nurabeustomers for substantially all of our futureerues. Failure 1
anticipate or respond adequately to technologieaébpments in our industry, changes in customsupplier requirements or changes in regulatoryireqments or
industry standards, or any significant delays endbvelopment or introduction of products or sexsicould have a material adverse effect on ounbssj operating
results and cash flows.

Customers who accounted for more than 10% of otowatts receivable as of December 31, 2013 arellasfo

« KOBO Inc.—46%
e Huizhou Desay SV Automotive Co., LT-10%

Our revenues for the year ended December 31, 2@t8 @arned from twenty-nine customers. Customeosaghounted for 10% or more of our net revenues
during the year ended December 31, 2013 are as\vsll

« KOBO Inc.—28%

« Netronix Inc.— 18%

« Leap Frog Enterprises In- 12%
« Sony Corporatior 11%

Customers who accounted for more than 10% of otowatts receivable as of December 31, 2012 arellas/fo

« KOBO Inc. —39%
« Sony Corporatio+ 24%

Our revenues for the year ended December 31, 2@t earned from twenty customers. Customers whauated for 10% or more of our net revenues
during the year ended December 31, 2012 are as\vsill

« Amazon-32%
« KOBO Inc.—26%
« Sony Corporatio 17%

Our revenues for the year ended December 31, 2@t4 @arned from seven customers. Customers whatecbfor 10% or more of our net revenues during
the year ended December 31, 2011 are as follows:

« Amazon-40%

« Barnes & Noble- 26%
« Sony Corporatior 21%
« KOBOInc.-11%




Geographical Data

The following table presents our net revenues mgggphic region as a percentage of total reverarahé years ended December 31:

2013 2012 2011
u.S. 51% 73% 78%
Taiwan 18% 1% --
Japar 11% 19% 21%
China 9% 5% --
Sweder 8% 2% 1%
Other 3% -- --
Total 10C% 10C%

The following table presents our total assets mggaphic region as of December 31 (in thousands):

2012 2011
10,99C $  14,46¢
1,17¢ 2,15¢

12,16¢ $  16,62:

U.S. $

Sweder

Asia

Total $
Competition

Our market is intensely competitive and characteriay rapidly changing technology, evolving staddaand new product releases by our competitore. Th
two dominant types of touch technologies availébline market are capacitive and resistive. Ounpetitors, and the interface technology we belibvey offer,

include the following:

Company Technology
3M Capacitive; Dispersive sign

Synaptics Capacitive; I--cell

ATMEL Capacitive; l--cell

Cypress Capacitive; I--cell

FlagFrog Optical infrarec

Maxim Capacitive; I--cell

Zytronic Capacitive

Tyco Electronics
Touch Internatione
Mass Multimedia Inc
Young Fas

TPK

Capacitive; Resistive; Surface acoustic w
Resistive; Capacitiv

Various touch technologie

Capacitive

Capacitive




Intellectual Property

We rely on a combination of intellectual propedywt and contractual provisions to establish anteptdhe proprietary rights in our technology. Tiuenber
of our issued and pending patents and patentsifiledch jurisdiction as of December 31, 2013 ida¢h in the following table:

No. of Issuec  No. of Patent:
Jurisdiction Patents Pendinc
United State:
Europe
Japar
China
South Koree
Canad:
Australia
Singapore
Patent Convention Trea
Total:

=

P WBRN T WWN O
IS

OO WUIh OO

N
~l
(o]
~l

Our patents cover six main categories: user integfg“Ul"), optics, controller integrated circu{fASIC”), drivers, mechanics and applications. The follo
table groups our patents into these six categories:

Patents Ul Optics ASICs Drivers Mechanice Applications Total

Issuec 4 3 1 7 1 11 27
Pendinc 19 45 2 5 4 12 87
Total 23 48 3 12 5 23 114

Our user interface software may also be protecgetbpyright laws in most countries, including Swe@dad the European Union, which do not grant patent
protection for the software itself, if the softwasedleemed new and original. Protection can benddifrom the date of creation.

Research and Development

In fiscal years 2013, 2012 and 2011, we spent 8ilbn, $5.7 million and $1.9 million, respectiyglon research and development activities. Owgaeh
and development is predominantly in-house, bulsis done in collaboration with external partnerd apecialists.

Employees

On December 31, 2013, we had forty-four employeestao part-time consultants. There were a totaight employees in our general and administrative
group, nine in our sales and marketing group amhtywseven in our engineering group. We have employsegdd in the U.S., Sweden, Israel, the Nether|choistr
Korea, Singapore and Japan. None of our employeegpresented by a labor union. We have experiemoavork stoppages. We believe our employee cglatare
positive.

Additional Information

We are subject to the informational requirementhefSecurities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended‘Exchange Act”) and we file or furnish reports,
proxy statements, and other information with theu8ig#ies and Exchange Commission (“SEC”). The Siantains an Internet site that contains reportsgpand
information statements and other information regprissuers that file electronically with the SEiGvavw.sec.gov. The reports and other informatitedfby us with
the SEC are available free of charge on the SE@lssite. The public may read and copy any matesialfile with the SEC at the SEC’s Public RefereRoem at
100 F Street, NE, Washington, DC 20549. The puhbg obtain information on the operation of the RuBeference Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SB800

Our website is www.neonode.carithrough our website, we make available free afrgé all of our filings with the SEC, including camnual reports on
Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, andenirreports on Form 8-K as well as Form 3, Formn, Form 5 Reports for the Company’s directors¢ef§, and
principal stockholders, together with amendmenthdse reports filed or furnished pursuant to ®estil3(a), 15(d), or 16 under the Exchange Acts&heports are
available as soon as reasonably practicable &férelectronic filing or furnishing with the SEOur website also includes corporate governancerirdtion, such as
our Code of Business Conduct (including Code ofdstfor the Chief Executive Officer and Senior Fiogl Officers) and Board Committee Charters. \iéeret
including the information contained on our websitepart of, nor incorporating it by reference itds Annual Report.




ITEM " Risk FACTORS
1A.

An investment in our common stock involves a hegirek of risk. Before deciding to purchase, hotdsedl in our common stock, you should consider
carefully the risks described below in additiortie cautionary statements and risks described élsevand the other information contained in this:dal Report an
in our other filings with the SEC, including subsenqt reports on Forms 10-Q and 8-K. The risks anckrtainties described below are not the only omes
face. Additional risks and uncertainties not praeknown to us or that we currently deem immalteriay also impair our business operations. If ahthese know
or unknown risks or uncertainties actually occuy dusiness, financial condition, results of opéras or cash flows could be seriously harmed. Thidd cause the
trading price of our common stock to decline, réaglin a loss of all or part of your investment.

Risks Related To Our Business
We are dependent on a limited number of customers.
Customers who accounted for more than 10% of ocouats receivable as of December 31, 2013 arellasvo

« KOBO Inc.— 46%
o Huizhou Desay SV Automotive Co., LTD — 10%

Our net revenues for the year ended December 3B, &8s earned from twenty-nine customers. Our custs are located in the U.S., Europe and Asia.
Customers who accounted for 10% or more of ourexainues during the year ended December 31, 2@1&sdollows:

« KOBO Inc.—28%

« Netronix Inc.— 18%

« Leap Frog Enterprises Inc. — 12%
« Sony Corporatior 11%

Our customer concentration may change significefndiy;n period-to-period depending on a customer&lpct cycle and changes in our industry. For
instance, in the fourth quarter of 2012, Amazowraliginued shipping a Kindle e-Reader product thediiporated our touch technology. As a result, 2ona
accounted for less than 1% of our total net revemu®013 compared to 32% of our total net revemu@®12. The loss of a major customer, a redadtimet
revenues of a major customer for any reason, ail@é of a major customer to fulfill its financiat other obligations due to us could have a metadverse effect on
our business, financial condition, and future rexestream.

We are dependent on the ability of our customerslésign, manufacture and sell their products thatiorporate our touch technology, particularly in
markets other than e-Readers.

We generate revenue through technology licensingesgents with companies which must be successtidsigning, manufacturing and selling their prod
that incorporate our touch technology. The majasftour license fees earned in 2013, 2012 and 28r& from customer shipments of e-Reader prodibts.expect
that customer shipments of e-Readers productsiedline in the future. If we are unable to expandlicenses beyond e-Readers or if our custonreraat able to
design, manufacture or sell their products, ordelayed in producing their products, our revenpedijtability, and liquidity, as well as our brandage, may be
adversely affected.

The length of a customer’s product development artkase cycle depends on many factors outside ofoomtrol and could cause us to incur significant
expenses without offsetting revenues, or revenues tary significantly from quarter to quarter.

The development and release cycle for customeruptsds lengthy and unpredictable. Our customdenaindertake significant evaluation and desigimén
qualification of our products, which contributesattengthy product release cycle. A customer’ssiegito purchase our technology often requiresgthey approval
process undertaken by several decision makere augtomer. The typical product development arehsa cycle is six to thirty-six months with newtousers while
existing customer lead times are typically six igermonths. The development and release cyclebmdgnger in some cases, particularly for autoneotehicle
products. There is no assurance that a customleadapt our technology after the evaluation or giegihase. The lengthy and variable developmenteladse cycle
for products may also have a negative impact onittieg of our revenues, causing our revenues asdlis of operations to vary significantly from geato quarter.
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If we fail to develop and introduce new touch teablngy successfully and in a cost effective and tiynmanner, we will not be able to compete effedijve
and our ability to generate revenues will suffer

We operate in a highly competitive, rapidly evolyienvironment, and our success depends on outyabildevelop and introduce new touch technology th
our customers and end users choose to buy. If evaresuccessful at developing new touch technologlyare appealing to our customers and end ustraegeptabl
functionality, quality, prices and terms, we wilitrbe able to compete effectively and our abilityenerate revenues will suffer. The developroénew touch
technology is very difficult and requires high l&ssef innovation and competence. The developmestgss is also lengthy and costly. If we fail ta@pate our end
users’ needs or technological trends accurateifyjvee are unable to complete development in a effsttive and timely fashion, we will be unablentroduce new
touch technology into the market or successfuliyjpete with other providers. As we introduce newernanced touch technology or integrate new toudim@ogy
into new or existing customer products, we facksriacluding, among other things, disruption intougers’ ordering patterns, inability to deliver neauch
technology to meet customers’ demand, possibleystaghd technology defects, and potentially unfeamgales and support environments. Premature aiceoents
or leaks of new products, features, or technologiag exacerbate some of these risks. Our failuneaoage the transition to newer touch technologh®integration
of newer technology into new or existing customedpcts could adversely affect our business, residlbperations, and financial condition.

We are dependent on Texas Instruments as a composapplier for our technology.

Our business operates upon a technology licensoagmWe do not manufacture products or componghitder our licensing model, OEMs and ODMs
customers use customized single optical infraredrotier chips developed in collaboration with Texastruments designed specifically for our opttoaich
technology. These controller chips can only be solcustomers who have a technology license agnetewith us. As part of their product developmerdgess, our
customers must qualify the chip components usedirproducts. If the controller chips providedTsxas Instruments experience quality control pnoisleour
technology may be disqualified by one or more afaustomers. Our dependence on Texas Instrumzstgoply controller chips with our touch technol@gposes
us to a number of risks including their inabilitydbtain an adequate supply of components, theréalib meet our customer requirements, or thdurfaito remain in
business or adjust to market conditions. If owstemers are unable to obtain controller chips withtouch technology, we may not be able to meetaahel, which
could have a material adverse effect on our busjrig&ncial condition, results of operations aaditflows.

Our operating results may fluctuate significantlysaa result of a variety of factors, many of whiclesoutside of our control.
We are subject to the following factors, among mththat may negatively affect our operating result

« the announcement or introduction of new productgcinologies by our competito

« our ability to upgrade and develop our infrastreetio accommodate growt

« our ability to attract and retain key personned itimely and cost effective mann

« technical difficulties

« the amount and timing of operating costs and chgitaenditures relating to the expansion of ouiiress, operations, and infrastructure;
« general economic conditions as well as economiditions specific to the touchscreen indus

As a result of our limited operating history and trature of the markets in which we compete, éxisemely difficult for us to forecast accurateMle have
based our current and future expense levels laarelur investment plans and estimates of futuemsy although certain of our expense levels ara large extent,
fixed. We may be unable to adjust spending in @liimanner to compensate for any unexpected revamrtfall. Accordingly, any significant shortfall revenues
relative to our planned expenditures would havaranediate adverse effect on our business, restitiparations and financial condition. Furtheraastrategic
response to changes in the competitive environmentay from time to time make certain pricingvésg, or marketing decisions that could have a nedtaend
adverse effect on our business, results of op&stend financial condition. Due to the foregdiactors, our revenues and operating results arevdhiemain
difficult to forecast.

11




We have had a history of losses and may require iddal capital to fund our operations, which capitanay not be available on commercially attractive
terms or at all.

We have experienced substantial net losses infesaeth period since our inception. These net losssslted from a lack of substantial revenues aed t
significant costs incurred in the development acmkptance of our technology. We may in the futerpiire sources of capital in addition to cash amdha continue
operations and to implement our business plan. Wieg that we have sufficient liquid assets totoare operating for at least the next twelve monttréowever, if
our operations do not become cash flow positivemag be forced to seek credit line facilities frimancial institutions, equity investments, or dabtangements. N
assurances can be given that we will be successfilitaining such additional financing on reasoadbtms, or at all. If adequate funds are notlabks when needed
on acceptable terms, or at all, we may be unakéeléguately fund our business plan, which coule lamegative effect on our business, results afatipas, and
financial condition.

We must significantly enhance our sales and techrgptalevelopment organizations.

We will need to improve the effectiveness and hiteafl our sales efforts in order to increase maakedreness and sales of our technology, espeesllye
expand into new market segments. Competition falified sales personnel is intense, and we mayaeatble to hire the kind and number of sales perdome are
targeting. Likewise, our efforts to improve andmefour technology require skilled engineers armyammers. Competition for professionals capabkxpanding
our research and development efforts is intensealthee limited number of people available with tieeessary technical skills. If we are unable @iy, hire, or
retain qualified sales, marketing, and technicas@enel, our ability to achieve future revenue rhayadversely affected.

We will need to increase the size of our organizatiand we may be unable to manage our growth effesly.

Our failure to manage growth effectively could havwmaterial and adverse effect on our businessitsesf operations and financial condition. Weicipate
that expansion of our organization will be requiteéddress internal growth to handle licensing r@seéarch activities. This expansion may pladgraficant strain
on management, operational, and financial resour€esnanage the expected growth of our operatoispersonnel, we must both improve our existirerajonal
and financial systems, procedures, and controtsjraplement new systems, procedures, and contks.must also expand our finance, administratind, @eration
staff. Our current personnel, systems, procedargscontrols may not adequately support futureaifmss. Management may be unable to hire, tratajm,
motivate, and manage the necessary personneljaderttfy, manage and exploit existing and potértieategic relationships and market opportunities

We may make acquisitions and strategic investmehtd ire dilutive to existing shareholders, resulgnn unanticipated accounting charges or otherwise
adversely affect our results of operations.

We may decide to grow our business through busic@sbinations or other acquisitions of busineggexjucts or technologies that allow us to compleémen
our existing touch technology offerings, expand market coverage, increase our workforce or enhancéechnological capabilities. If we make anyfet
acquisitions:

« We could issue stock that would dilute our shamdéic’ percentage ownershi

« We may incur substantial debt, reduce our cashwes@nd/or assume contingent liabilities;

« They may result in material charges, adverse tas@guences, substantial depreciation, deferred @asagion charges,-process research a
development charges, and the amortization of ansaefated to deferred compensation and identifipbtehased intangible assets or impairment of
goodwill
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Any of these could negatively impact our resultepérations.
We are exploring strategic alternatives with respéxour user-interface patent and licensing busises

On September 3, 2013, we announced that the Bé@atextors has authorized the exploration of sigat alternatives with respect to our user-intexfac
patent and licensing business. This intellectoaperty portfolio principally relates to touchsanaegserinterface gestures. The Board of Directors intendsonsider i
broad range of alternatives including, but notiedito, a merger, sale, or spin-off. There candassurance that the Board of Directors’ evalagtimcess will result
in any transaction, or that any transaction, ifsped, will be consummated.

We are dependent on the services of our key persbnne

Our senior management team consists of two execafficers. Our Chief Executive Officer is onetloé founders of our current Company. Our Chief
Financial Officer has been with our Company forgm#icant period of time and has deep knowledgewfoperating history. The unplanned loss of #reises of an
member of management could have a materially ad\effsct on our operations and future prospects.

Our revenues and growth are dependent on licensfegs from our intellectual property.

Our success depends in large part on our propyiggahnology and other intellectual property right%e rely on a combination of patents, copyrights,
trademarks and trade secrets, confidentiality jsions, and licensing arrangements to establistpestdct our proprietary rights. Our intellectuabperty, particularly
our patents, may not provide us with a significaompetitive advantage. If we fail to protect oetdorce our intellectual property rights succes$gfur competitive
position could suffer, which could harm our resolft®perations. Our pending patent applicationgdgistration may not be allowed, or others maylehge the
validity or scope of our patents. Even if our p&eaegistrations are issued and maintained, thassn{s may not be of adequate scope or benefit to may be held
invalid and unenforceable against third partiese May need to expend significant resources to seud protect our intellectual property. The lokmtellectual
property rights may adversely impact our abilitygenerate revenues and expand our business.

If third parties infringe our intellectual propertywe may expend significant resources enforcing eights or suffer competitive injury.

Existing laws, contractual provisions and remedisrd only limited protection for our intellectuptoperty. We may be required to spend significant
resources to monitor and police our intellectualerty rights. Effective policing of the unautharkzuse of our technology or intellectual propestdifficult and
litigation may be necessary in the future to erdarar intellectual property rights. Intellectuabperty litigation is not only expensive, but timeasuming, regardless
of the merits of any claim, and could divert atiemtof our management from operating the businessllectual property lawsuits are subject to irdmruncertainties
due to, among other things, the complexity of #ehhical issues involved, and we cannot assurehaiuwe will be successful in asserting our intgli@l property
rights. Attempts may be made to copy or reverséneeg aspects of our technology or to obtain amdinfermation that we regard as proprietary. We mat be able
to detect infringement and may lose competitivatimosin the market before they do so. In additioampetitors may design around our technology uelde
competing technologies. Intellectual property rigimay also be unavailable or limited in some fara@iguntries, which could make it easier for contpetito capture
market share. We cannot assure you that we willdbe to protect our proprietary rights againstutharized third party copying or use. The unauttediuse of our
technology or of our proprietary information by quetitors could have an adverse effect on our ghditsell our technology.

The laws of foreign countries may not provide protion of our intellectual property rights to the sae extent as the laws of the United States, whicym
make it more difficult for us to protect our intedctual property.

As part of our business strategy, we target custeened relationships with suppliers and originalipment manufacturers in countries with large papahs
and propensities for adopting new technologies. él@r, many of these countries do not address migppation of intellectual property nor deter othéom
developing similar, competing technologies or ieilial property. Effective protection of patemtspyrights, trademarks, trade secrets and otheltentual property
may be unavailable or limited in some foreign coest In particular, the laws of some foreign coiastin which we do business may not protect otallectual
property rights to the same extent as the lawhefunited States. As a result, we may not be abééfectively prevent competitors in these regifsom infringing our
intellectual property rights, which could reduce oampetitive advantage and ability to competéose regions and negatively impact our business.
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We have an international presence in countries andshmanage currency risks.

A significant portion of our business is condudtedurrencies other than the U.S. dollar (the awyein which our consolidated financial statemerts
reported), primarily the Swedish Krona and, tossé extent, the Euro and Japanese Yen. Foetreeypded December 31, 2013, our revenues frotd.the Asia,
and Europe were 51%, 41%, and 8% respectively.indle a significant portion of our expenses in Siskdrona, including a significant portion of o@search and
development expenses and a substantial portionrajeneral and administrative expenses. As a regyitreciation of the value of the Swedish Kroratiee to the
other currencies, particularly the U.S. dollar, ldoadversely affect operating results. We do netently undertake hedging transactions to covercouarency
exposure, but we may choose to hedge a portionrofurrency exposure in the future as it deemsapjate.

If our internal controls over financial reporting & not considered effective, our business and stpdke could be adversely affected.

Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 meguis to evaluate the effectiveness of our intewatrols over financial reporting as of the ereach
fiscal year, and to include a management repoesassg the effectiveness of our internal contreks dinancial reporting in our annual report oniRdr0-K for that
fiscal year. Section 404 also requires our indepehcegistered public accounting firm to attesetad report on, managementissessment of our internal controls
financial reporting. Our management, including principal executive officer and principal finanoidficer, does not expect that our internal colstaver financial
reporting will prevent all errors and all fraud.cAntrol system, no matter how well designed andaipd, can provide only reasonable, not absolsgjrance that the
control system’s objectives will be met. Furthée tesign of a control system must reflect thetfsat there are resource constraints, and the ib@pétontrols must
be considered relative to their costs. Becauskepiitherent limitations in all control systems,evaluation of controls can provide absolute assgamat all control
issues and instances of fraud involving a compawe tbeen, or will be, detected. The design of gstesn of controls is based in part on certain agsioms about the
likelihood of future events, and we cannot assaethat any design will succeed in achieving iggest goals under all potential future conditiongeCtime, controls
may become ineffective because of changes in dondibr deterioration in the degree of compliandé yolicies or procedures. Because of the inhdnenitiations in
a cost-effective control system, misstatementstaweror or fraud may occur and not be detectedc#mot assure you that we or our independenttesgis public
accounting firm will not identify a material wealgsein our internal controls in the future. A matéweakness in our internal controls over financéglorting would
require management and our independent registeutait @ccounting firm to consider our internal cotg as ineffective. If our internal controls oferancial
reporting are not considered effective, we may ggpee a loss of public confidence, which couldéhan adverse effect on our business and on theetnanike of ou
common stock.

Risks Related to Owning Our Stock
Our certificate of incorporation and bylaws and tH2elaware General Corporation Law contain provisistthat could delay or prevent a change in control.

The Board of Directors of our Company has the aitthto issue up to 1,000,000 shares of prefertedksand to determine the price, rights, prefersraoel
privileges of those shares without any further \ataction by the stockholders. The rights of tbklars of common stock will be subject to, and rhaymaterially
adversely affected by, the rights of the holderarof preferred stock that may be issued in theduflihe issuance of preferred stock could havefieet of making it
more difficult for a third party to acquire a mafgrof our outstanding voting stock. Furthermorertain other provisions of our certificate of ingoration and bylaws
may have the effect of delaying or preventing cleang control or management, which could adverafgct the market price of our common stock. Initold, we
are subject to the provisions of Section 203 ofDk&aware General Corporation Law, an anti-take teaer
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Our stock price has been volatile, and your investmin our common stock could suffer a decline ialue.

There has been significant volatility in the manggte and trading volume of equity securities,abhis unrelated to the financial performance of the
companies issuing the securities. These broad iwkéuations may negatively affect the marketgrof our common stock. You may not be able tollrgsar
shares at or above the price you pay for thoseestdhre to fluctuations in the market price of ammon stock caused by changes in our operatingmmeahce or
prospects, and other factors.

Some specific factors that may have a significéieceon our common stock market price include:

. actual or anticipated fluctuations in our operatiegults or future prospec

. our announcements or our competi’ announcements of new technolo

. the publi’s reaction to our press releases, our other pabliouncements, and our filings with the S|

. strategic actions by us or our competitors, suchcasisitions or restructuring

. new laws or regulations or new interpretationsxa$téng laws or regulations applicable to our bess

. changes in accounting standards, policies, guidaniggpretations or principle

. changes in our growth rates or our compet growth rates

. developments regarding our patents or proprieights or those of our competitol

. our inability to raise additional capital as neec

. concern as to the efficacy of our technolc

. changes in financial markets or general economiditions;

. sales of common stock by us or members of our managt team; an

. changes in stock market analyst recommendatiorarmings estimates regarding our common stockr etiveparable companies, or our indu
generally.

Future sales of our common stock by our stockholsl@ould negatively affect our stock price.

Since our shares commenced trading on the NASDAQkSWarket in 2012, institutions have increasedrtheldings in the shares of our common stock. In
addition, during 2013, officers and directors obNede sold shares of our common stock in publieroff§s. Sales of a substantial number of sharesrofommon
stock in the public market by large stockholdersesiders, or the perception that these sales noigtiir, could depress the market price of our comstock and
could impair our ability to raise capital througditetsale of additional equity securities.

Future sales of our common stock by us could adedysaffect its price, and our future capital-raisgactivities could involve the issuance of equity
securities, which would dilute your investment anduld result in a decline in the trading price ofuo common stock

Our long-term success is dependent on us obtaiffigient capital to fund our operations and tealep our touch technology, and bringing our te¢bgp
to the worldwide market to obtain sufficient saletume to be profitable. We may sell securitiethie public or private equity markets if and whenditions are
favorable, even if we do not have an immediate rieeddditional capital at that time. Sales of gab8al amounts of common stock, or the perceptiah such sales
could occur, could adversely affect the prevailimgrket price of our common stock and our abilitydise capital. We may issue additional commonksim¢uture
financing transactions or as incentive compensdtioour executive management and other key peedpoonsultants and advisors. Issuing any equityrstges
would be dilutive to the equity interests represdriy our then-outstanding shares of common sido.market price for our common stock could de@essthe
market takes into account the dilutive effect of ahthese issuances. Furthermore, we may entfimdncing transactions at prices that represeutatantial
discount to the market price of our common stockiefjative reaction by investors and securitiesyatgto any discounted sale of our equity secsrit@ild result in
a decline in the trading price of our common stock.
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If securities analysts do not publish research ésecurities analysts or other third parties pulllisnaccurate or unfavorable research about us, thece of
our common stock could decline.

The trading market for our common stock will ratygart on the research and reports that secuaitiakysts and other third parties choose to pulliut
us. We do not control these analysts or othed thérties. The price of our common stock couldidedf one or more securities analysts downgrastecommon
stock or if one or more securities analysts or rothied parties publish inaccurate or unfavoralelsearch about us or cease publishing reports alout

ITEM
1B.

UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

We lease 3,185 square feet of office space loat2850 Mission College Blvd, Suite 190, Santa Cl@ra 95054 USA. The annual payment for this space
equates to approximately $86,000 per year. Thisdés valid through July 31, 2015.

Our subsidiary NTAB leases 5,480 square feet a€@Bpace located at Storgatan 23C, Stockholm, &wédhe annual payment for this space equates to
approximately $458,000 per year including propéaty(excluding VAT). This lease is valid througméu30, 2014. The lease can be extended on a yesly.

Our subsidiary NJK leases office space located@tBureau Shinagawa, 4-1-6 Konan, Minato-ku, 0085 Tokyo, Japan. This lease is valid through Ba
12, 2014. The annual payment for this space eqtmigsproximately $36,000 per year.

We believe our existing facilities are in good cibiod and suitable for the conduct of our business.
ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are not currently involved in any material legedceedings. However, from time to time, we magomee subject to legal proceedings, claims, and
litigation arising in the ordinary course of busiegincluding, but not limited to, employee, custorand vendor disputes.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable.
PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT 'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY
SECURITIES

Market Information
Our common stock is quoted on the NASDAQ Stock Madkeler the symbol NEON. Shares of our commonrkstocnmenced trading on the NASDAQ
Stock Market on May 1, 2012. Prior to that time,rekaf our common stock traded on the Over-the-@oBulletin Board quotation system. Set forthobehre the

high and low sales prices for our common stockriutie time our common stock traded on the NASDAGzISMarket, or the range of high and low bid infation
during the time our common stock traded on the @verCounter Bulletin Board quotations system thiar quarterly periods indicated.
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Fiscal Quarter Ended

Fiscal 201:
High
Low

Fiscal 201z
High
Low

Holders

As of February 7, 2014, there were approximately dtbckholders of record of our common stock. \&teraate that there were approximately 4,300
stockholders as of February 7, 2014 whose shareshvetd in “street name” by brokers and other ingtns on behalf of stockholders of record .

Dividends

There are no restrictions on our ability to payidiands. It is currently the intention of the Boafdirectors to retain all earnings, if any, faeuin our
business and we do not anticipate paying cashefids in the foreseeable future. Any future deteation as to the payment of dividends will depemdpag other

September
March 31 June 30 30 December 3.
$ 6.3¢ $ 6.21 8.8/ % 6.82
$ 448 3 5.02 57t $ 4.9¢
$ 5.1t $ 6.80C $ 7.4C $ 5.3C
$ 3.4t % 2.8t 3.1¢ $ 3.4C

factors, upon our earnings, capital requirememgsrating results and financial condition.

Stock Performance Graph

The graph below compares the cumulative total stwdder return on our common stock with the cumuéatotal returns of the Russell MicroCap index and
the S&P Information Technology index. The grapltksthe performance of a $100 investment in ourrmomstock and in each index (with the reinvestnoésad|

dividends) from December 31, 2008 to December 8132
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CONPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*

Among Meonodelns, the RussellMioreC ap Index, and the S&P Information Technology Index

$800
$500
3400
$300 1
$200 -

100

12/0E 1208 1210 iz 12M2 1213

—— HNecnode Inc. Russell MicroC ap S&P Information Technology

~§100 invested on 12/31/06 I stockor indes, hcivding reinvestmentof dvidends.
FEcal yearending Decermber 31,

CopyrightS 2014 S&PF, a dision of Thie McGraw -HIl Companies ho. Al ightsressrved,
Copyright® 2014 Rusesll Inves tment Sroup. Allrghts reserved.

12/08 12/09 12/10 12/11 12/12 12/13
Neonode Inc. 100.0( 40.0C 139.8( 380.0( 388.8( 505.6(
Russell MicroCap 100.0( 127.4¢ 164.3( 149.0¢ 178.5( 259.9:
S&P Information Technology 100.0( 161.7: 178.2( 182.5( 209.5¢ 269.1!

The stock price performance included in this grspiot necessarily indicative of future stock preeformance.

The stock performance graph above shall not be ddencorporated by reference into any filing byunsler the Securities Act of 1933, as amended,eor th
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, etc#m extent that we specifically incorporatetsudormation by reference, and shall not otherwisedeemed

filed under such Act:

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table of selected financial inforn@tishould be read in conjunction with our consaéiddinancial statements and related notes thénetodec

elsewhere in this Annual Report.

As of or for the Year Ended December 31

2013 2012

(In thousands, except per share date

Financial Results:

Total net revenue $ 3,717 $ 7,137
Net loss (13,080 (9,287
Per Share:

Basic and diluted loss per shi $ 037) $

Weighted average number of shares outstar 35,26¢ 33,00:¢

Financial Position:

Total asset $ 11,47: $ 12,16¢
Total liabilities 5,12: 4,06¢
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2011 2010 2009
6,067 $ 440 $ -
(17,145 (31,626 (14,927)
(069 $ 179 $ (1.61)
26,78 18,29: 9,89¢
16,627 $ 1,251 $ 212
2,95¢ 11,11 6,56(




ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis should be iaaconjunction with our consolidated financiatstments and the related notes thereto includewbése
in this Annual Report.

Overview

Neonode develops and licenses user interfaces@imlanfrared touch technology. Our patented tetbgy offers multiple features including the diilio
sense an object’s size, depth, velocity, pressume proximity to any type of surface. We license multi-touch technology to OEMs and ODMs who inavgie it
into devices that they produce and sell.

As of December 31, 2013, we had thirty-three tetdgylicense agreements with global OEMs and ODMsés Tampares with twenty-four and twelve
technology license agreements as of December 32, &¥d 2011, respectively. During the year endezkBéer 31, 2013, we had twelve customers usingooeh
technology in products that were being shippedusiamers. In 2013, we received license fees frostomers such as Leap Frog and Oregon Scientifictwnare
shipping children’s tablets), One Laptop Per Clthich is shipping a laptop/tablet) and Volvo (whis shipping after-market installed touch for treitomobile
infotainment systems) and.

The majority of our license fees earned in 2013, 228nd 2011 were from customer shipments of e-Readducts. We expect license fees earned from
customer shipments of e-Readers to decrease asemfzge of total revenue as other customer preduetintroduced to the market. In the fourth areof 2012,
Amazon discontinued shipping a Kindle e-Reader peothat incorporated our touch technology. Amaaocounted for less than 1% of our total net revén 2913,
32% of our total net revenue in 2012 and 40% oftotal net revenue in 2011. We anticipate othetarners will initiate product shipments as they ctetetheir final
product development and manufacturing cycle throug®014 and 2015.

Current and future drivers of the touch technologyket include laptop computers, all-in-one and jgot@r monitors running Microsoft Windows 8 and
Google Chrome operating systems, mobile phonestgps, automotive, household appliances, tabldReaaers, navigation screens, efthe proliferation and mass
market acceptance of touch technology have prompedapplications and uses for existing and neeroffjs, thus making the production and utilizatidthese
modules one of the fastest growing tech segments.

The typical product development and release cycdixito thirty-six months with new customers wialesting customer lead times are typically sixitoe
months. During the initial cycle, there are thréages: evaluation, design, and commercializatinrihe evaluation phase, prospects validate olnntdogy and may
produce short runs of prototype products. Durirggdbsign phase, product development and solutifmititen begins. This design phase tends to bddhgest and
delays typically occur which may extend the ternthef overall cycle. In the final phase, commeizalon, the customer enters into full productiood®, ships
products to the market and we earn license revenue.

Our OEM and ODM customers use our touch technologyiiroller chips we developed in collaborationhaiiexas Instruments. In connection with the
generation NN1001 controller chip, we are obligatedontribute $500,000 of non-recurring engineg(itNRE”) development costs to Texas Instrumentebaon a
fee of $0.08 per unit for each of the first onelionil units shipped and $0.05 for the next eightionlunits shipped. Through December 31, 2013haie made total
payments of $270,000 to Texas Instruments for tNé®01 controller chip. No amounts were recordetthényears ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 bewause
NNZ1001 shipments occured during those periodsoimection with the next generation NN1002 congrathip, we are obligated to contribute $500,00DRE to
Texas Instruments based on a fee of $0.25 pefamgach of the first two million units shipped.&NN1002 is currently in development and has nehlreleased to
mass production. The NN1001 and NN1002 can onlsolet to customers who have a technology licenseeagent with Neonode.
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Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The consolidated financial statements have begraped in accordance with accounting principles galyeaccepted in the United States of America 8U.
GAAP") and include the accounts of Neonode Inc. im@holly owned subsidiaries. All inter-compargcaunts and transactions have been eliminated in
consolidation.

The consolidated balance sheet at December 31,&0d the consolidated statements of operationspmensive loss and cash flows for the years ended
December 31, 2012 and 2011 include our accountsharsé of our wholly owned subsidiary, Neonode Tebtbgies AB (Sweden) (“NTAB”).

The consolidated balance sheet at December 31,&81 ghe consolidated statements of operationspmensive loss and cash flows for the year ended
December 31, 2013 include our accounts and thosarafholly owned subsidiaries, NTAB, Neonode Arnasi Inc. (U.S.) (“NAI"), Neonode KK (Japan) (“NJK")
NEON Technology Inc. (U.S.“NTI") and Neno User Interface Solutions AB (SwelléiNUIAB”).

All inter-company accounts and transactions haws fiminated in consolidation. The accountingge$ affecting our financial condition and reswlts
operations are more fully described in Note 2 toamnsolidated financial statements. Certain ofamgounting policies require the application ofgoebnt by
management in selecting appropriate assumptiorsafoulating financial estimates, which inheremibyntain some degree of uncertainty. Management fitases
estimates on historical experience and variousr@bsumptions that are believed to be reasonablier she circumstances. The historical experiendeaasumptions
form the basis for making judgments about the rggalocarrying values of assets and liabilities dredreported amounts of revenue and expenses tlyatohde
readily apparent from other sources. Actual resulty differ from these estimates under differesuagptions or conditions. We believe the followimg eritical
accounting policies and related judgments and estisused in the preparation of our consolidatezhfiial statements.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confoymiith U.S. GAAP requires making estimates andiag#ions that affect, at the date of the consatidat
financial statements, the reported amounts of aisset liabilities, disclosure of contingent asseid liabilities and the reported amounts of reveame expenses.
Actual results could differ from these estimatdgnicant estimates include, but are not limiteddollectability of accounts receivable, recovdigtof long-lived
assets, the valuation allowance related to ourdaféax assets and the fair value of options aadamts issued for stock-based compensation.

Revenue Recognition
Licensing Revenues:

We derive revenue from the licensing of internallgveloped intellectual property (“IP"We enter into IP licensing agreements that genegaibvide
licensees the right to incorporate our IP companéntheir products with terms and conditions thety by licensee. The IP licensing agreements gélgenclude
nonexclusive license for the underlying IP. Feedenrthese agreements may include license feesngelat our IP and royalties payable following thstdbution by
our licensees of products incorporating the licdrtsehnology. The license for our IP has standal@iee and can be used by the licensee withoutterzance ar
support. We follow US GAAP for revenue recognit@s per unit royalty products are distributed oerised by our customers. For technology licenssngement
that do not require significant modification or tamization of the underlying technology, we recagniechnology license revenue when: (1) we enterarlegall
binding arrangement with a customer for the licenistechnology; (2) the customer distributes oetises the products; (3) the customer payment inettéixed o
determinable and free of contingencies or significancertainties; and (4) collection is reasonagured. Our customers report to us the quantfiggoduct:
distributed or licensed by them after the end ef téporting period stipulated in the contract, galtye 30 to 45 days after the end of the month wartpr. Effectiv
October 16, 2013, we determined it was appropt@tecognize licensing revenue in the period inclvhbyalty reports are received from customersedife Octobe
16, 2013, we determined it was appropriate to reizeglicensing revenue in the period in which royaéports are received from customers. Prior ttoBer 16, 201:
we recognized licensing revenue in the period irctvkhe products were distributed by our customditse effect of this change is $713,000 of licemsenues relate
to products shipped or distributed by our custonmethe fourth quarter of 2013 that will be recaggd in the first quarter of 2014.
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Explicit return rights are not offered to customdrsere were no returns through December 31, 2013.
Engineering Services:

We may sell engineering consulting services toomstomers on a flat rate or hourly rate basis. ¥¢egnize revenue from these services when alleof th
following conditions are met: (1) evidence existé@n arrangement with the customer, typically égiirgy of a purchase order or contract; (2) ouvises were
performed and risk of loss passed to the custof8ewe completed all of the necessary terms ottrract; (4) the amount of revenue to which weenatitled was
fixed or determinable; and (5) we believed it wesbable that we would be able to collect the amoluiet from the customer. To the extent that onearerof these
conditions has not been satisfied, we defer retiognof revenue. Generally, we recognize reversugha engineering services stipulated under theradrare
completed and accepted by our customers.

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accts

Our accounts receivable are stated at net readizedblie. Our policy is to maintain allowances fstirated losses resulting from the inability of customer:
to make required payments. Credit limits are eithbll through a process of reviewing the finarttistory and stability of each customer. Where appate, we
obtain credit rating reports and financial statetsef the customer when determining or modifyirsgcitedit limits. We regularly evaluate the collédity of our trade
receivable balances based on a combination ofriadfighen a customer’s account balance becomesipastve initiate dialogue with the customer to detee the
cause. If it is determined that the customer véliumable to meet its financial obligation, suclnathe case of a bankruptcy filing, deterioratiarthe customer’s
operating results or financial position or othettenial events impacting its business, we recorpegific allowance to reduce the related receivabbhe amount we
expect to recover. Should all efforts fail to reepthe related receivable, we will write-off thecaant. We also record an allowance for all custenbaised on certain
other factors including the length of time the reables are past due and historical collection erpee with customers.

Research and Development

Research and development (“R&D”) costs are expeasedcurred. R&D costs consist mainly of persomakited costs in addition to some external
consultancy costs such as testing, certifying aadsarements.

Stock-Based Compensation Expense

We measure the cost of employee services receivexichange for an award of equity instrumentspidicly share options, based on the fair value of the
award on the grant date, and recognize the valeerapensation expense over the period the empleyeguired to provide services in exchange foravard,
usually the vesting period, net of estimated foufeis.

We account for equity instruments issued to nonleyges at their fair value. The measurement datthéofair value for the equity instruments issised
determined at the earlier of (i) the date at wiidommitment for performance by the consultantesrdor is reached, or (i) the date at which thesatiant or
vendor’s performance is complete. In the case oitgipstruments issued to consultants, the faueaf the equity instruments is primarily recogruover the term
of the consulting agreement. The fair value ofdtoek-based compensation is periodically re-measamne income or expense is recognized during théngeterm.

When determining stock-based compensation expemséring options and warrants, we determine thereged fair value of options and warrants using the
Black-Scholes option pricing model.

Foreign Currency Translation and Transaction Gairend Losses

The functional currency of our foreign subsidiaiiethe applicable local currency, the Swedish Kronthe Japanese Yen. The translation from Swedish
Krona or Japanese Yen to U.S. Dollars is perforfoetalance sheet accounts using current exchage in effect at the balance sheet date anddomia statement
accounts using a weighted average exchange rateydbe period. Gains or (losses) resulting froamgtation are included as a separate componetofralated
other comprehensive income (loss). Gains or (I9ssssilting from foreign currency transactionsiacuded in general and administrative expensélsan
accompanying consolidated statements of operaéindsvere ($155,000), ($50,000) and $44,000 duhiag/ears ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011,
respectively. Foreign currency translation gainfasses) were $6,000, ($8,000) and $76,000 dihiegears ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 28ddeatively.
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Net Loss Per Share

Net loss per share amounts have been computed bashd weighted-average number of shares of constomk outstanding during the years ended
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011. Net loss peesassuming dilution amounts from common stockwedents, is computed based on the weighted avenageer
of shares of common stock and potential commorkstqaivalents outstanding during the period. Theghted average number of shares of common stock and
potential common stock equivalents used in compgutie net loss per share for years ended Decemb@033, 2012 and 2011 exclude the potential comstmrk
equivalents, as the effect would be anti-dilutive.

Comprehensive Loss

Our comprehensive loss includes foreign curreraydiation gains and losses. The cumulative ammfurdnslation gains and losses are reflected as a
separate component of stockholders’ equity in tiresolidated balance sheets, as accumulated othgrebensive income.

Cash Flow Information

Cash flows in foreign currencies have been condddéd).S. dollars at an approximate weighted avemghange rate for the respective reporting psriod
The weighted average exchange rate for the comgeticstatements of operations was 6.51, 6.78 &@d3wedish Krona to one U.S. Dollar for the yeaudeel
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively ekbbange rate for the consolidated balance sheest$.48 and 6.52 Swedish Krona to one U.S. Dalasf
December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Thghtei-average exchange rate for the consolidasgeinsent of operations and of comprehensive 10sOW&S
Japanese Yen to one U.S. Dollar for the year eBagmber 31, 2013. The exchange rate for the ddasedl balance sheet was 105.22 Japanese Yen td.8ne
Dollar as of December 31, 2013.

Deferred Revenue

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, we have $2.50miind $2.1 million, respectively, of deferrecklise fee revenue related to prepayments for future
license fees from three customers and a total &f #llion and $0.6 million, respectively, of defed engineering development fees from twenty-omkthinteen
customers, respectively. We defer the license dieéswe have met all accounting requirements émenue recognition as per unit royalty productsdistibuted or
licensed by our customers and the engineering dprent fee revenue until such time as the engingevork has been completed and accepted by ouwroess.

New Accounting Pronouncements

Proposed Amendments to Current Accounting Stand&teisFinancial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB’rurrently working on current amendments to
existing accounting standards governing a numbaresds including, but not limited to, revenue redtign and lease accounting.

In June 2010, FASB issued an exposure dREtienue from Contracts with Customerkich would supersede most of the existing guidamceevenue
recognition in Accounting Standards CodificatioA$C") Topic 605,Revenue Recognitiorin November 2011, the FASB re-exposed this dgnadt it expects a final
standard to be issued in the first quarter of cde2014. As the standard-setting is still ongothg,Company is unable to determine the impactttiposed change
in accounting will have on the Company’s consobdadfinancial statements at this time.
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In August 2010, the FASB issued an exposure dratises which would result in significant changes to #deeounting requirements for both leases and
lessors in ASC Topic 84Qeases In May 2013, the FASB re-exposed this draft arddbmment period was closed in September 201Zhé\standard-setting is still
ongoing, the Company is unable to determine theahthis proposed change in accounting will havéhenCompany’s consolidated financial statementsiatime.

In July 2013, the FASB issued Accounting Standahpdate (“ASU”) No. 2013-11, Presentation of an Unrecognized Tax Benefit WhietaOperating
Loss Carryforward, a Similar Tax Loss, or a Tax diteCarryforward Existe.” ASU 2013-11 provides explicit guidance on theaficial statement presentation of an
unrecognized tax benefit when a net operatingdasyforward, a similar tax loss, or a tax creditrgforward exists. The guidance is effective peusiely for fiscal
years, and interim periods within those years, tii@gg after December 15, 2013, with an option mlyeadoption. We intends to adopt this guidanabatbeginning
of its first quarter of fiscal year 2014, and isremtly evaluating the impact on its consolidat@aricial statements and disclosures.

Results of Operations
Net Revenue

Net revenues for the year ended December 31, 2@$35®.7 million, compared to $7.1 million and $&illion for the years ended December 31, 2012 and
2011, respectively. Our net revenues for the yaded December 31, 2013 included $2.9 million frechhology license fees from product shipments froaive
customers and $800,000 in non-recurring engineesgéngces related to our touch technology from tyéwo customers. Our net revenues for the yeaeénd
December 31, 2012 included $6.2 million from tedbgy license fees from product shipments from e@lgtomers and $925,000 in non-recurring engingerin
services related to our touch technology from éifteustomers. Our net revenues for the year endedriber 31, 2011 included $5.8 million from tecbggllicense
fees from four customers and $287,000 in non-ré@ayengineering services related to our touch teldgy from six customers.

The decrease in overall net revenues in the yetedeBDecember 31, 2013 compared to the year endeshideer 31, 2012 is primarily due to a decrease in
license fees primarily from Amazon, which did notlude our technology in its Kindle Paperwhite ex&. Amazon contributed approximately 32% of otaltnet
revenues during the year ended December 31, 20h@ared to less than 1% in the year ended Decenih@033. The decrease in net revenues earned froazén
was partially offset by an increase in net reverasgaed from Kobo Inc., Leap Frog Enterprises &mel Netronix Inc. Effective October 16, 2013, weedmined it
was appropriate to recognize licensing revenuberperiod in which royalty reports are receivedirfrcustomers. Prior to October 16, 2013, we reaeghiicensing
revenue in the period in which the products westrithuted by our customers. The effect of this deais $713,000 of licensing revenues related tdywmts shipped or
distributed by our customers in the fourth quanfe2013 that will be recognized in the first quaxié&2014.

Since 2011, three of our customers prepaid a ¢dtd4.8 million for technology license fees priorghipment of their products. Customer prepaymargs
included in deferred revenue and are amortizeeétoavenues as a customer’s products are shippidtdbuted. For the years ended December 31,,201®2 and
2011, $258,000, $536,000 and $1.5 million in liesfees related to units licensed or distributeceuride $4.8 million prepayment were recognizedessmue,
respectively, and as of December 31, 2013, $2.Bomilemained in deferred revenue from this custtsriEense fee prepayment.

As of December 31, 2013, we had thirty-three tetdgylicense agreements with global OEMs. This campavith twenty-four and twelve technology

license agreements with global OEMs as of Decembe?@®12 and 2011, respectively. Twelve of our auslis are currently shipping products and we argieip
others will initiate product shipments as they ctetetheir final product development and manufasgicycle throughout 2014.
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Gross Margin

Gross margin was $2.1 million for the year endeddbeber 31, 2013 compared to $5.7 million and $5lom for the years ended December 31, 2012 and
2011, respectively. Our cost of revenues inclubedifrect cost of production of certain custometgtypes, costs of company employed engineeringopeel and
engineering consultants to complete the engineel&sign contract. Our gross margin has decreasetbdhe decrease in our total revenue particutarhicense fee
revenue. The gross margin related to our licensg i2100%. As license fees as a percentage abtalirevenue increase, our gross margin willéase.

Research and Development

Research and development (“R&D") expenses for e gnded December 31, 2013 was $7.2 million coedp@r $5.7 million and $1.9 million for the years
ended December 31, 2012 and 2011. R&D costs dafdise cost of prototypes and other materialasattants, and the amount of time our engineeregadment
spent engaged in customer specific activities.

We continue to pursue and expand R&D expendituneth® development of our touch technology and daésglinologies. As of December 31, 2013, our F
department had twenty-seven full-time employees.R&D department had twenty-six full-time employessnpared to eighteen fuilne employees at December
2012 and 2011, respectively. Included in R&D engss is approximately $267,000 of non-cash stotikmpand warrant expense for the year ended Dece®ibhe
2013 compared to approximately $315,000 and $11@0Me same periods in 2012 and 2011, respegytivel

Sales and Marketing

Sales and marketing (“S&M”) expenses for the yemleel December 31, 2013 was $2.7 million, compareift4 million and $1.8 million for the years ended
December 31, 2021 and 2011, respectively. The deer@ 2013 as compared to 2012 is primarily réledea decrease in sales personnel, marketingravel t
expenses in addition to a decrease in non-cask spion and warrant expense. The increase in 28k@mpared to 2011 is primarily related to anease in sales
personnel, marketing, trade shows and travel exgserss of December 31, 2013, our sales and magkdgpartment has nine full-time employees comptrédelve
full-time employees and nine employees at Decer@beP012 and 2011, respectively. Included in S&Memges is approximately $909,000 of non-cash stptikro
and warrant expense for the year ended Decemb@0338,compared to approximately $1.4 million an8,800 for the same periods in 2012 and 2011, réispgc

Our sales activities focus primarily on OEM custosneho will integrate our touch technology into thaioducts. Our OEM customers will then sell and
market their products incorporating our technolamheir customers.

General and Administrative

General and administrative (“G&A”) expenses for {lear ended December 31, 2013 was $5.1 million esethto $4.7 million and $3.5 million for the years
ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectivelyirthease in the year ended December 31, 2013 gechpa2012 is primarily due to an increase in léges,
particularly legal fees related to patent filingffset by a decrease in n@ash stock option and warrant expense. The ineliead2012 as compared to 2011 is prime
related to an increase in headcount and non-cash gptions expense. As of December 31, 2013 atd,2@e had eight full-time employees in our G&A dement
fulfiling management and accounting responsilgittompared to three employees and onetipagteonsultant as of December 31, 2011. Includg8&A expenses
approximately $1.5 million of non-cash stock optard warrant expense for the year ended Decemh@038 compared to approximately $1.8 million add000
for the same periods in 2012 and 2011, respectively
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Interest Expense

Interest expense for the year ended December 31, &8s $288,000. All the interest bearing convigtitebt was converted to common stock and retired i
December 2011. We did not have any interest expengbe years ended December 31, 2013 or 2012.

Foreign Currency Translation and Transaction Gairend Losses

The functional currency of our foreign subsidiaiiiethe applicable local currency, the Swedish Kronthe Japanese Yen. The translation from Swedish
Krona or Japanese Yen to U.S. Dollars is perforfoetalance sheet accounts using current exchage in effect at the balance sheet date anddomia statement
accounts using a weighted average exchange rategdbe period. Gains or (losses) resulting froamstation are included as a separate componetofraulated
other comprehensive income (loss). Gains or (I9gsssiting from foreign currency transactionsiauded in general and administrative expensésean
accompanying consolidated statements of operasindsvere ($155,000), ($50,000) and $44,000 duhieg/ears ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011,
respectively. Foreign currency translation gainsgés) were $6,000, ($8,000) and $76,000 duringehes ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 201 katesgy.

Non-Cash Items Related to Debt Discounts and DegerFinancing Fees and the Valuation of Conversior&tures and Warrants
Non-cash items related to debt discounts and aefdimancing fees and the valuation of converseaiudres and warrants for the year ended December 31
2011 was $14.7 million. The amount in 2011 inclu#i@$ million in net change in derivative liabii§, $4.3 million of debt discount and debt issuaus
amortization$1.5 million in excess amount of debt discount geiped as interest expense associated with demstand $0.4 million associated with the fair eatd
shares issued for bonus interest related to th@raatic conversion of the Senior Convertible SeciNetes - 2011. All of the convertible debt was cened to
common stock and retired in December 2011.
Income Taxes

Our effective tax rate was (1)% in the years erddedember 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011. We recordedti@ualowances at December 31, 2013 and 2012 for
deferred tax assets related to net operating laksz$o the uncertainty of realization.

Net Loss

As a result of the factors discussed above, werdedoa net loss of $13.1 million for the year enBedember 31, 2013, compared to a net loss of dlidn
and $17.1 million for the years ended Decembe2812 and 2011, respectively.

Contractual Obligation and Off-Balance Sheet Arraegnents

We do not have any transactions, arrangementsher celationships with unconsolidated entities tira reasonably likely to affect our liquidity capital
resources other than the operating leases incurtd@ normal course of business.

A summary of future minimum payments under non-eable operating lease commitments as of Dece®be2013 is as follows (in thousands):

Less thar More than
Total 1 year 1-3years  3-5years 5 years
Operating lease obligatiol $ 372 $ 31¢ $ 53 - -

We have no special purpose or limited purposeiestihat provide ofbalance sheet financing, liquidity, or market adit risk support. We do not engagt
leasing, hedging, research and development sendcesher relationships that expose us to ligbtliat is not reflected on the face of the consaéd financial
statements.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our liquidity is dependent on many factors, inchglsales volume, operating profit and the efficjeotasset use and turnover. Our future liquidityf ke
affected by, among other things:

. actual versus anticipated licensing of our techgyl

. our actual versus anticipated operating expet

. the timing of our OEM customer product shipme

. the timing of payment for our technology licensagreements;
. our actual versus anticipated gross profit mar

. our ability to raise additional capital, if necaysand

. our ability to secure credit facilities, if necess:

At December 31, 2013, we had cash of $8.8 millaan¢compared to $9.1 million at December 31, 2012.

Working capital (current assets less current ligéd) was $6.0 million at December 31, 2013, coragdo working capital of $7.7 million at Decem|3dr,
2012.

Net cash used in operating activities for the ysated December 31, 2013 of $8.8 million was pritpdlnie result of (i) a net loss of approximately
$13.1 million and (ii) approximately $1.5 million het cash provided by changes in operating aasetsabilities, primarily accounts receivable ateferred revenue.
Cash used to fund net losses is reduced by appateiy$2.8 million in non-cash operating expenseginly comprised of depreciation and amortizatiod atock-
based compensation.

Accounts receivable decreased approximately $1ll®bmat December 31, 2013 compared with Decemtie2812, primarily as a result of net revenues of
approximately $1.0 million in the fourth quarter2ff13 compared to approximately $2.3 million in tberth quarter of 2012. During 2013 and 2012, vezev
successful in collecting cash from sales to outaners substantially in accordance with our stashgayment terms to those customers.

Deferred revenue increased approximately $0.9aniltiuring 2013 primarily as a result of additiolieénse technology agreements and engineeringgtsoje
entered into during 2013 as compared to 2012.

Net cash used in operating activities for the ywated December 31, 2012 of $3.7 million was prilpdhie result of (i) a net loss of approximately
$9.3 million and (ii) approximately $1.9 million imet cash provided by changes in operating assdtabilities, primarily accounts receivable arefetred revenue.
Cash used to fund net losses is reduced by appatedyr$3.6 million in non-cash operating expenseainly comprised of depreciation and amortizatind atock-
based compensation.

Accounts receivable decreased approximately $1ll®mat December 31, 2012 compared with Decembie2811, primarily as a result of net revenues of
approximately $2.3 million in the fourth quarter2ff12 compared to approximately $4.0 million in tberth quarter of 2011. During 2012 and 2011, vezev
successful in collecting cash from sales to outarusrs substantially in accordance with our stashgayment terms to those customers.

Deferred revenue increased approximately $0.8anillluring 2012 primarily as a result of additiolieénse technology agreements and engineeringgisoje
entered into during 2012 as compared to 2011.

Net cash used in operating activities for the ysated December 31, 2011 of $3.5 million was pritpdlnie result of (i) a net loss of approximately
$17.1 million and (ii) approximately $1.6 million het cash used by changes in operating asset&hitities, primarily accounts receivable and dedel revenue.
Cash used to fund net losses is reduced by appataly$15.3 million in net non-cash operating exgesn mainly comprised of stock-based compensatidn a
discounts and deferred financing fees and the tialuaf conversion features and warrants.

Accounts receivable increased approximately $3Ikomiat December 31, 2011 compared with Decembe®810, primarily as a result of net revenues of

approximately $4.0 million in the fourth quarter2ffl1 compared to approximately $81,000 in thetfoguarter of 2010. During 2011, we were successful
collecting cash from sales to our customers subatignin accordance with our standard payment tetonthose customers.
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Deferred revenue increased approximately $1.4amilliuring 2011 primarily as a result of additiolieénse technology agreements and engineeringgtsoje
entered into during 2011 as compared to 2010.

In the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2@ furchased $155,000, $310,000 and $114,00fcteely of fixed assets, consisting primarily of
computer software, computers and engineering egenpm

Net cash provided by financing activities was $8illion and was due to net proceeds of $1.8 millieceived in connection with the exercise of stoptons
and warrants for shares of our common stock duhieg/ear ended December 31, 2013. In additionseged 1,168,939 shares of our common stock totongein
connection with an equity financing transactionvimich we raised approximately $7.7 million and ieed approximately $6.9 million in cash, net of endriting
commissions, direct selling costs including legaidit and other regulatory costs of approximat@$nillion.

Net cash provided by financing activities total@grximately $200,000 during the year ended Decerdbg2012 from the exercise of warrants for shafes
our common stock. Net cash provided by financictiyaies for the year ended December 31, 2011 apsoximately $15.5 million, which consist of neopeeds of
approximately $4.2 million from issuances of coride debt, net proceeds of approximately $500;800 exercise of warrants and net proceeds of aqupately
$10.8 million from issuances of common stock. Sincheases were offset by repayment of convertiblat df approximately $30,000.

We believe we have sufficient cash to operate ffteast the next twelve months.

In the future, we may require sources of capitalddition to cash on hand to continue operationstammplement our strategy. If our operations db n
become cash flow positive, we may be forced to seedit line facilities from financial institutiongquity investments or debt arrangements. No assas can be
given that we will be successful in obtaining sadditional financing on reasonable terms, or atfadidequate funds are not available on acceptebtes, or at all, w
may be unable to adequately fund our business plathst could have a negative effect on our businesults of operations and financial conditionadldition, if
funds are available, the issuance of equity seearir securities convertible into equity couldutBlthe value of shares of our common stock andecthe market pric
to fall, and the issuance of debt securities coulubse restrictive covenants that could impairahility to engage in certain business transactions.

|7TAEM QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK  ET RISK

The functional currency of our foreign subsidiaiiethe applicable local currency, the Swedish Kronthe Japanese Yen, and is subject to foreigercy
exchange rate risk. Any increase or decrease iaxbleange rate of the U.S. Dollar compared to thedBsh Krona or Japanese Yen will impact Neonofigise
operating results. The majority of our consolidatetirevenues (89%) are denominated in US Dolledsagproximately 52% of our consolidated costs are
denominated in Swedish Krona. We do not believeagbsa in foreign currency exchange rates will beenmtto our financial position or results of op@ya. We do
not currently enter into forward-exchange contréetisedge exposure denominated in foreign curreraiany other derivative financial instrumentstfading or
speculative purposes. In the future, if our operatichange and we determine that our foreign exggharposure has increased, we may consider entettngedging
transactions to mitigate such risk.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Index to the Consolidated Financial Statement

Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfinm

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,8€1.301%

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the yeaded December 31, 2013, 2012 and =

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Loshi&yéars ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and
Consolidated Statements of Stockhol’ (Deficit) Equity for the years ended December 31,2®012 and 201
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yealed December 31, 2013, 2012 and =

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statem

28

Page
28

30
31
32
33
85

36




REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Stockholders
Neonode Inc

We have audited the accompanying consolidated talsineets of Neonode Inc. (a Delaware corporatind)subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of Decembe2813
and 2012, and the related consolidated stateméntsecations, comprehensive loss, stockholderdidileequity, and cash flows for each of the thyears in the
period ended December 31, 2013. These consolifiatattial statements are the responsibility of@menpany’s management. Our responsibility is to espian
opinion on these consolidated financial statembasgd on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighamBaUnited States). Those standards require teagilan an
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assuranoet athether the financial statements are free dérie misstatement. An audit includes examiningadest basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosurtiifinancial statements. An audit also includegssing the accounting principles used and sigmifiestimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the lbfiaeancial statement presentation. We believe tha audits provide a reasonable basis for oumiopi

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaeaferred to above present fairly, in all mateeapects, the financial position of Neonode bd subsidiaries as
December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the results opésations and its cash flows for each of the tlgeze's in the period ended December 31, 2013, rifocmity with
accounting principles generally accepted in theé¢hBtates of America.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stdsd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Blo@/nited States), the Company'’s internal contxaro
financial reporting as of December 31, 2013, basedriteria established imternal Control — Integrated Framewo(k992) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring

Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO)andeport dated March 5, 2014 expressed an uriiggatipinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting.

/sl KMJ Corbin & Company LLI

Costa Mesa, California
March 5, 2014
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NEONODE INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

As of As of
December 31 December 31
2013 2012
ASSETS
Current asset:
Cash $ 8,81t $ 9,097
Accounts receivabl 96¢ 2,128
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 1,352 55(C
Total current asse 11,13¢ 11,77(
Non-current asset:
Deposits - 68
Property and equipment, r 33E 33C
Total nor-current asset 33E 39¢€
Total asset $ 11,47, $ 12,16¢
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payabl $ 47¢ 3% 53¢
Accrued expense 97¢ 804
Deferred revenue 3,66¢ 2,72¢
Total current liabilities 5,12 4,06¢
Total liabilities 5,12% 4,06¢
Commitments and contingencies (Note
Stockholder equity:
Series A Preferred stock, 444,541 shares authowithdpar value of $0.001 per share; 0 and 83 shiaseied an
outstanding at December 31, 2013 and 2012. (Ietket of dissolution, each share of Series A Preflestock has a
liguidation preference equal to par value of $0.60er the shares of common sto — —
Series B Preferred stock, 54,425 shares authowitédpar value of $0.001; 83 and 95 shares issnddatstanding ¢
December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. (In Yieateof dissolution, each share of Series B Prefestock has a
liquidation preference equal to par value of $0.60er the shares of common sto — —
Common stock, 70,000,000 shares authorized at Dieeedi, 2013 and 2012 with par value of $0.001933,799 ant
33,331,182 shares issued and outstanding at Dec&hp2013 and 2012, respectiv: 38 33
Additional paic-in capital 157,99 146,67"
Accumulated other comprehensive incc 11 5
Accumulated defici (151,69 (138,619
Total stockholder equity 6,34¢ 8,10(
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity $ 11,47: $ 12,16¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statements.
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NEONODE INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Years Ended December ¢

Net revenue $
Cost of revenue

Gross margit

Operating expense
Research and developm:
Sales and marketir
General and administrati

Total operating expens

Operating los:

Other expense

Interest and other expen

Nonr-cash items related to debt discounts and defeimadding fees and the valuation of convers
features and warrants

Total other expens

Loss before provision for income tax
Provision for income taxe

Net loss $

Loss per common shar
Basic and diluted loss per shi $

Basic and dilute— weighted average number of common shares outs@

2013 2012 2011
3,711 7,131 6,061
1,647 1,46¢ 90¢
2,07t 5,67¢ 5,15¢
7,23t 5,741 1,85¢
2,73¢ 4,372 1,81%
5,07¢ 4,721 3,53:

15,04¢ 14,83 7,20¢
(12,979 (9,162) (2,049
— — (28¢)

_ — (14,739

— — (15,029
(12,979 (9,162) (17,067
10¢ 128 78
(13,080 (9,28) (17,149
(0.3 (0.29) (0.64)
35,26¢ 33,00: 26,78:

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statements.
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NEONODE INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
(In thousands)

Years ended December

2013 2012 2011
Net loss $ (13,080 $ (9,287 $ (17,145
Other comprehensive income (los
Foreign currency translation gain (lo 6 (8) 76
Total comprehensive lo: $ (13,079 $ (9,295 $ (17,069

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statements.
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Balances,
January 1, 2011

Stock option an
warrant
compensation
expense to
employees and
vendors

Common stock
issued upon
exercise of
warrants

Proceeds fror
sale of common
stock, net of
offering costs

Reclassificatior
of derivative
liabilities to
additional paid-
in capital

Fair value of
warrants issued
in connection
with issuance of
2011 senior
secured
convertible deb

Exchange of
Series A
preferred stock
for common
stock

Exchange o
Series B
preferred stock
for common
stock

Common stock
issued upon
conversion of
outstanding
convertible debi
and accrued
bonus incomt

Common stock
issued for
settlement of
accrued
expense:

Foreign currenc
translation
adjustmen

Net loss

NEONODE INC
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ (DEFICIT) EQUITY
(in thousands)

Series A Accumulated
Preferred Series A Series B Common Additional Other Total Stockholder¢
Stock Shares Preferred Stock Preferred Stock Series B Preferred Stock Shares ~ Common Paid-in Comprehensive  Accumulated (Deficit)
Issued Amount Shares Issued Stock Amount Issued Stock Amount Capital Income (Loss) Deficit Equity
-$ - -$ - 21,817 $ 22 $ 102,36( $ 63 $ (112,18) $ (9,864)
- - - - - - 55(C - - 55(C
- - - - 5452 1 514 - - 51F
- - - - 3,00( 3 10,78 - - 10,78:
- - - - - - 20,07¢ - - 20,07¢
- - - - - - 937 - - 937
. . . . 40 o o . . o
. . . . 6 o o . . o
- - - - 7,31t 7 7,61¢ - - 7,622
- - - - 60 - 12C - - 12C
- - - - - - - 76 - 76
- - - - - - - - (17,145 (17,145
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Series A Accumulated
Preferred Series A Series B Common Additional Other
Stock Shares Preferred Stock Preferred Stock Series B Preferred Stock Shares Common Paid-in Comprehensive  Accumulated  Total Stockholders
Issued Amount Shares Issued Stock Amount Issued Stock Amount Capital Income (Loss) Deficit Equity

Balances,
December 31,
2011 -$ - -$ - 32,77¢ $ 32 8% 142,95! $ 13 % (129,329 $ 13,67¢

Stock option an

warrant

compensation

expense to

employee: - - - - - - 3,49¢ - - 3,49¢

Common stock

issued upon

exercise of

common stock

warrants - - - - 55C - 22¢ - - 22%

Exchange o

Series B

preferred stock

for common

stock - - - - 2 - - - - -

Foreign currenc
translation
adjustmen - - - - - - - ()] - (8)

Net loss - - - - - - - - (9,287) (9,287)

Balances,
December 31,
2012 -$ - -$ - 33,33 $ 32 8% 146,67 $ 5% (138,614 $ 8,10(

Stock option ant

warrant

compensation

expense to

employees,

directors and

vendors - - - - - - 2,65¢ - - 2,65¢

Proceeds from

sale of common

stock, net of

offering costs - - - - 1,16¢ 2 6,89( - - 6,892

Common stocl

issued upon

exercise of

common stock

warrants - - - - 3,152 3 711 - - 714

Common stocl

issued upon

exercise of

common stock

options 241 - 1,06( 1,06(

Exchange of

Series A

preferred stock

for common

stock - - - - 40 - - - - -

Exchange o

Series B

preferred stock

for common

stock - - - - 1 - - - - -

Foreign currenc
translation
adjustmen - - - - - - - 6 - 6

Net loss s = = = = s s = (13,080) (13,08()

Balances,
December 31,
2013 - $ - -8 - 37,93« $ 3€ $ 157,99: $ 11 $ (151,69") $ 6,34¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statements.
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NEONODE INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands)

Years Ended December ¢

2013 2012 2011
Cash flows from operating activitie
Net loss $ (13,08() $ (9,287) $ (17,149
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash usegerating activities
Stock-based compensatic 2,65¢ 3,49¢ 55C
Depreciation and amortizatic 144 97 26
Loss on disposal of asst 8 - -
Debt discounts and deferred financing fees andaheation of conversion features and warr: - - 14,73¢
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Accounts receivabl 1,15¢ 1,257 (3,22¢)
Prepaid expenses and other current a: (641) (296) 79
Accounts payable and accrued expel 19 23¢ 322
Deposits - (68) -
Deferred revenue 93¢ 81¢ 1,36¢
Net cash used in operating activit (8,807 (3,744 (3,457)
Cash flows used in investing activitie
Purchase of property and equipment (15E) (310) (114)
Cash flow from financing activitie:
Proceeds from issuance of convertible ¢ - - 4,22¢
Repayment of convertible de - - (25)
Proceeds from exercise of stock opti 1,06( - -
Proceeds from exercise of warra 714 22¢ 51&
Proceeds from issuance of common stock, warranicheg and preferred stoc 6,89 - 10,78:
Net cash provided by financing activities 8,66¢ 22¢ 15,50¢
Effect of exchange rates on cz 8 (12) 91
Net increase (decrease) in ci (282) (3,847 12,02¢
Cash at beginning of ye 9,097 12,94( 911
Cash at end of yei $ 8,81F $ 9,097 $ 12,94(
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow informati
Cash paid for interest $ - § - $ 27
Cash paid for income tax $ 10¢€ $ 125 $ 78
Reclassification of derivative liabilities to addital paic-in capital upon conversion of debt &
exercise of warrants $ -$ - $ 20,07t
Debt issuance costs recorded as part of 2011 fimgh@nsactior $ - $ - $ 35
Debt discount recorded as part of convertible @ieahcingtransactions, including warrants issue
financing transactions $ - $ - $ 4,22¢
Accrued expenses settled with shares of commoik $ - $ - $ 12C
Conversion of debt and accrued interest to shdresromon stocl $ - $ - $ 7,222
Debt issuance costs recorded in connection of @dbtguishment transactiol $ - $ - $ 20,07¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statements.
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NEONODE INC.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
1. Nature of the business and operations
Background and Organization

Neonode Inc. was incorporated in the State of Datevin 1997 as the parent of Neonode AB, a comfimmyded in February 2004 and incorporated in
Sweden. On December 29, 2008, we entered intora stiiahange agreement with AB Cypressen nr 968auftred Neonode Technologies AB), a Swedish engimg
company, and Neonode Technologies AB became oullyxwned subsidiary.

On March 25, 2011, we filed a Certificate of Amenaditnef our Amended and Restated Certificate of Ipocation affecting a reverse stock split of the
Company’s issued and outstanding shares of comitochk and preferred stock at a ratio of twenty-fieesne (the “Reverse Split”). The Certificate ahAndment
provided that each twenty-five (25) outstandingrebaf the Company’s common stock, par value $0g@@khare, was exchanged and combined, autongtical
without further action, into one (1) share of conrmstock, and each twenty-five (25) outstanding ehaf the Company’s preferred stock, par valueGiOp®r share,
was exchanged and combined, automatically, withather action, into one (1) share of preferrectktdhe Reverse Split was declared effective on k2g&; 2011
and has been reflected in this Annual Report.

Operations

Neonode Inc. ( “we”, “us”, “our”, the “Company”) gelops and licenses user interfaces and opticadried touch technology to Original Equipment
Manufacturers (“OEMs”) and Original Design Manufactsr@é ODMs”) who embed the Neonode technology inteicks that they produce and sell.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements have begraped in accordance with accounting principles galyeaccepted in the United States of America 8U.
GAAP”) and include the accounts of Neonode Inc. im@holly owned subsidiaries. All inter-compargcaunts and transactions have been eliminated in

consolidation.

The consolidated balance sheet at December 31,&0d the consolidated statements of operationspensive loss and cash flows for the years ended
December 31, 2012 and 2011 include our accountsharsé of our wholly owned subsidiary, Neonode Tetbgies AB (Sweden) (“NTAB").

The consolidated balance sheet at December 31,&81 ghe consolidated statements of operationspamensive loss and cash flows for the year ended
December 31, 2013 include our accounts and thosaraf/holly owned subsidiaries, NTAB, Neonode Arpasi Inc. (U.S.) (“NAI"), Neonode KK (Japan) (“NJK")
NEON Technology Inc. (U.S.“NTI") and Neno User Interface Solutions AB (SwelléiNUIAB”).

Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith U.S. GAAP requires management to make egtsiand assumptions that affect, at the dateeof th
financial statements, the reported amounts of aigset liabilities, disclosure of contingent asseid liabilities and the reported amounts of reveamet expenses.

Actual results could differ from these estimatdgnBicant estimates include, but are not limiteddollectability of accounts receivable, recovdigtof long-lived
assets, the valuation allowance related to ourdafdax assets, and the fair value of optionsveandants issued for stock-based compensation.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

We have not had any liquid investments other tr@mal cash deposits with bank institutions to daitee Company considers all highly liquid investnsent
with original maturities of three months of lesd®cash equivalents.

Concentration of Cash Balance Risks

Cash balances are maintained at various bankg ib 8., Japan and Sweden. At times, deposits higidinancial institutions in the United StatesAuherica
may exceed the amount of insurance provided bydderal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”), efhprovides basic deposit coverage with limitsap t
$250,000 per owner. The Swedish government provigesance coverage up to 100,000 euro per custantecovers deposits in all types of accounts. JEpanese
government provides insurance coverage up to 1M000ren per customer. As of December 31, 2013Ctrapany has approximately $8.4 million in excess o
insurance limits.

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accts

Our accounts receivable are stated at net readizedblie. Our policy is to maintain allowances fstirated losses resulting from the inability of customer:
to make required payments. Credit limits are eisthbt through a process of reviewing the finantistiory and stability of each customer. Where appate, we
obtain credit rating reports and financial statets@f the customer when determining or modifyirsgcitedit limits. We regularly evaluate the collédigy of our trade
receivable balances based on a combination ofrfiadighen a customer’s account balance becomesipastve initiate dialogue with the customer to detee the
cause. If it is determined that the customer véliumable to meet its financial obligation, suclnake case of a bankruptcy filing, deterioratiarthe customer’s
operating results or financial position or othettenial events impacting its business, we recorpegific allowance to reduce the related receivabbhe amount we
expect to recover. Should all efforts fail to reepthe related receivable, we will write-off thecaant. We also record an allowance for all custenbaised on certain
other factors including the length of time the reables are past due and historical collection eepee with customers. An allowance for doubtitd@unts was not
necessary at December 31, 2013 and 2012.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost, netaofnaulated depreciation and amortization. Depriesiagnd amortization are computed using the sttdiga
method based upon estimated useful lives of thetsias follows:

Estimated useful live

Computer equipmer 3 years
Furniture and fixture 5 years

Equipment purchased under capital leases is aradrtim a straight-line basis over the estimatedulifif of the asset or term of the lease, whichése
shorter.

Upon retirement or sale of property and equipmesgt and accumulated depreciation and amortizatiememoved from the accounts and any gains cedoss
are reflected in the consolidated statement ofaifmers. Maintenance and repairs are charged to egmeshincurred.

Long-Lived Assets
We assess any impairment by estimating the futasé 8ow from the associated asset in accordantterelevant accounting guidance. If the estimated
undiscounted future cash flow related to thesetasEreases or the useful life is shorter thagiraily estimated, we may incur charges for impaintof these asse

The impairment is based on the estimated discolwateh flow associated with the asset. At Decer@be2013, we believe there is no impairment oflong-lived
assets.

37




Foreign Currency Translation and Transaction Gairend Losses

The functional currency of our foreign subsidiaiiethe applicable local currency, the Swedish Kronthe Japanese Yen . The translation from Swedis
Krona or Japanese Yen to U.S. Dollars is perforfoeflalance sheet accounts using current exchatge in effect at the balance sheet date anddonie statement
accounts using a weighted average exchange rategdbe period. Gains or (losses) resulting froamstation are included as a separate componetofraulated
other comprehensive income (loss). Gains or (I9gsssiting from foreign currency transactionsiauded in general and administrative expensésean
accompanying consolidated statements of operasindsvere ($155,000), ($50,000) and $44,000 duhieg/ears ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011,
respectively. Foreign currency translation gainsgés) were $6,000, ($8,000) and $76,000 duringehes ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 201 katesgy.

Concentration of Credit and Business Risks

We are dependent on a limited number of OEM and OD#&larners and the loss of any one of these custaroald have a material adverse effect on our
future revenue stream. In the short term, we guatie that we remain dependent on a limited nurabeustomers for substantially all of our futureerues. Failure 1
anticipate or respond adequately to technologieaébpments in our industry, changes in customsupplier requirements or changes in regulatoryireqments or
industry standards, or any significant delays endbvelopment or introduction of products or sexsicould have a material adverse effect on ounbssj operating
results and cash flows.

Customers who accounted for more than 10% of otowatts receivable as of December 31, 2013 arellasfo

« KOBO Inc.—46%
e Huizhou Desay SV Automotive Co., LT-10%

Our revenues for the year ended December 31, 2@t @arned from twenty-nine customers. Our custe@uer located in the U.S., Europe and Asia.
Customers who accounted for 10% or more of ourenvatnues during the year ended December 31, 2@1&sdollows:

« KOBO Inc.—28%

« Netronix Inc.— 18%

o Leap Frog Enterprises In- 12%
« Sony Corporatior 11%

Customers who accounted for more than 10% of ocowatts receivable as of December 31, 2012 arellas/fo

« KOBO Inc.—39%
« Sony Corporatior 24%

Our revenues for the year ended December 31, 2@t2 @arned from twenty customers. Our customer®eated in the U.S., Europe and Asia. Customers
who accounted for 10% or more of our net revenueimd the year ended December 31, 2012 are asvsillo

« Amazon-32%
« KOBO Inc.—26%
« Sony Corporatior 17%

Our net revenues for the year ended December 31, ®@re earned from seven customers. Our custaneitscated in the U.S., Europe and Asia. Custo
who accounted for 10% or more of our net revenueimd the year ended December 31, 2011 are asvaillo

« Amazon - 40%

« Barnes & Noble- 26%

« Sony Corporatio— 21%
« KOBOInc.-11%
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Revenue Recognition
Licensing Revenues:

We derive revenue from the licensing of internallgveloped intellectual property (“IP"We enter into IP licensing agreements that genegibvide
licensees the right to incorporate our IP companéntheir products with terms and conditions thety by licensee. The IP licensing agreements gélgenclude
nonexclusive license for the underlying IP. Feedeurthese agreements may include license feesngelat our IP and royalties payable following thstidbution by
our licensees of products incorporating the licdrtsehnology. The license for our IP has standal@iee and can be used by the licensee withoutterzance ar
support. Neonode follows U.S. GAAP for revenue gedtion as per unit royalty products are distriliiter licensed by the Compasytustomers. For technolc
license arrangements that do not require significardification or customization of the underlyirgchnology, we recognize technology license revavhen: (1) wi
enter into a legally binding arrangement with ateoeer for the license of technology; (2) the custortistributes or licenses the products; (3) thetaaer payment
deemed fixed or determinable and free of contingsnar significant uncertainties; and (4) colleotis reasonably assured. Our customers report tioeuguantities «
products distributed or licensed by them after ¢inel of the reporting period stipulated in the cactir generally 30 to 45 days after the end of treatm o
quarter. Effective October 16, 2013, we determih@dhs appropriate to recognize licensing revenube period in which royalty reports are receifn customer:
Prior to October 16, 2013, we recognized licensexgnue in the period in which the products westritiuted by our customers. The effect of thisngeais $713,0C
of license revenues related to products shippetistributed by our customers in the fourth quaofe2013 that will be recognized in the first quax&2014.

Explicit return rights are not offered to customdrsere have been no returns through December@B. 2
Engineering Services:

We may sell engineering consulting services tocmstomers on a flat rate or hourly rate basis. ¥éegnize revenue from these services when alleof th
following conditions are met: (1) evidence existéén arrangement with the customer, typically ¢stivgy of a purchase order or contract; (2) ouvises were
performed and risk of loss passed to the custof8kwe completed all of the necessary terms ottmract; (4) the amount of revenue to which weenatitled was
fixed or determinable; and (5) we believed it wesbable that we would be able to collect the amoluiet from the customer. To the extent that oneanerof these
conditions has not been satisfied, we defer ret¢ognof revenue. Generally, we recognize reveraiha engineering services stipulated under theactrare
completed and accepted by our customers.

Deferred Revenue
From time-to-time the Company receives pre-paymiats its customers related to future servicesuture license fee revenues. We defer the liceres fe
until we have met all accounting requirements &venue recognition as per unit royalty productsdéstibuted or licensed by the Company’s custoraesthe
engineering development fee revenue until such éisthe engineering work has been completed ampseztby our customers.

Advertising

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Adiirgiicosts amounted to approximately $141,000, $®02and $241,000 for the years ended December 31,
2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Research and Development

Research and development (“R&D”) costs are expeasedcurred. R&D costs consist mainly of persomekdted costs in addition to some external
consultancy costs such as testing, certifying andsarements.

Stock-Based Compensation Expense

We measure the cost of employee services receivexichange for an award of equity instrumentspiticly share options, based on the fair value of the
award on the grant date, and recognize the valaerapensation expense over the period the empisyeguired to provide services in exchange forativard,
usually the vesting period, net of estimated faoufeis.

We account for equity instruments issued to nopleyees at their fair value. The measurement daatehe fair value for the equity instruments issigsed
determined at the earlier of (i) the date at wiadommitment for performance by the consultantemder is reached, or (ii) the date at which thesatiant or
vendor’s performance is complete. In the case oitgipstruments issued to consultants, the faine®f the equity instruments is primarily recogrdzover the term
of the consulting agreement. The fair value ofdteek-based compensation is periodically re-medsanel income or expense is recognized during tegéngeterm.
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When determining stock-based compensation expemséring options and warrants, we determine thereged fair value of options and warrants using the
Black-Scholes option pricing model.

Income Taxes

We recognize deferred tax liabilities and assatshfe expected future tax consequences of itemdithee been included in the consolidated financial
statements or tax returns. We estimate income taa®sd on rates in effect in each of the jurisoiitiin which we operate. Deferred income tax assetdiabilities
are determined based upon differences betweelntémecfal statement and income tax bases of assétadilities using enacted tax rates in effecttfe year in
which the differences are expected to reverse.r@alkzation of deferred tax assets is based onrigsi tax positions and expectations about futaxable income.
Valuation allowances are recorded against net dfeéax assets when, in our opinion, realizatiaimisertain based on the “more likely than not"esté of the
accounting guidance.

Based on the uncertainty of future pre-tax incowefully reserved our net deferred tax assets &eobmber 31, 2013 and 2012. In the event we were t
determine that we would be able to realize ourrdefetax assets in the future, an adjustment tadfierred tax asset would increase income in thegheuch
determination was made. The provision for incomxesaepresents the net change in deferred tax a@s)qias income taxes payable for the current perio

We follow the relevant accounting guidance reldtedncertain tax positions, which provisions in@wdtwo-step approach to recognizing relesgnizing an
measuring uncertain tax positions. As a resultdidenot recognize a liability for unrecognized taenefits. As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, vdentoa
unrecognized tax benefits.

Net Loss Per Share

Net loss per share amounts have been computed bashd weighted average number of shares of constemk outstanding during the years ended
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011. Net loss pee sassuming dilution amounts from common stockwadents, is computed based on the weighted avenagber
of shares of common stock and potential commorkstqaivalents outstanding during the period. Theghted average number of shares of common stock and
potential common stock equivalents used in comgutie net loss per share for the years ended Dewediih2013, 2012 and 2011 exclude the potentiahcon
stock equivalents, as the effect would be antitdiu(see Note 15).

Comprehensive Loss

Our comprehensive loss includes foreign curreraydiation gains and losses. The cumulative anmafurdénslation gains and losses are reflected as a
separate component of stockholders’ equity in tiresolidated balance sheets, as accumulated othgarebensive income.

Cash Flow Information

Cash flows in foreign currencies have been condddéd).S. dollars at an approximate weighted aveesghange rate for the respective reporting period
The weighted average exchange rate for the comgeticstatements of operations was 6.51, 6.78 &@d3wedish Krona to one U.S. Dollar for the yeaudeel
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively ekbbange rate for the consolidated balance sheet$.48 and 6.52 Swedish Krona to one U.S. Dalasf
December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. The w&igaverage exchange rate for the consolidateehséatts of operations and of comprehensive 10sOR&S
Japanese Yen to one U.S. Dollar for the year eBDagmber 31, 2013. The exchange rate for the ddasedl balance sheet was 105.22 Japanese Yen td.8ne
Dollar as of December 31, 2013.
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments

We disclose the estimated fair values for all ficiahinstruments for which it is practicable toiestte fair value. Financial instruments includirasie,
accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrpethges and are deemed to approximate fair vakigodiineir short maturities.

New Accounting Pronouncements

Proposed Amendments to Current Accounting Standartie Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB"§urrently working on current amendment
existing accounting standards governing a numbaresds including, but not limited to, revenue rettign and lease accounting.

In June 2010, FASB issued an exposure dREtienue from Contracts with Customenghich would supersede most of the existing gutdaon revenue
recognition in Accounting Standards CodificatioA$C”) Topic 605,Revenue Recognitiorin November 2011, the FASB re-exposed this dradt it expects a final
standard to be issued in the first quarter of cde2014. As the standard-setting is still ongothg,Company is unable to determine the impactttiposed change
in accounting will have on the Company’s consobdédfinancial statements at this time.

In August 2010, the FASB issued an exposure dratises which would result in significant changes to #deeounting requirements for both leases and
lessors in ASC Topic 84Qeases In May 2013, the FASB re-exposed this draft arddbmment period was closed in September 201Zhé\standard-setting is still
ongoing, the Company is unable to determine theohthis proposed change in accounting will havéhenCompany’s consolidated financial statementsiatime.

In July 2013, the FASB issued Accounting Standahpdate (“ASU”) No. 2013-11, Presentation of an Unrecognized Tax Benefit WhietaOperating
Loss Carryforward, a Similar Tax Loss, or a Tax @iteCarryforward Exists” ASU 2013-11 provides explicit guidance on theafigial statement presentation of an
unrecognized tax benefit when a net operatingdasyforward, a similar tax loss, or a tax creditrgforward exists. The guidance is effective peusiely for fiscal
years, and interim periods within those years, ti@gp after December 15, 2013, with an option mlyeadoption. The Company intends to adopt thidance at the
beginning of its first quarter of fiscal year 2054d is currently evaluating the impact on its abidated financial statements and disclosures.
3. Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets

Prepaid expense and other current assets congist @ifllowing (in thousands):

As of December 31

2013 2012
Prepaid insuranc $ 91 $ 80
Prepaid ren 75 52
VAT receivable 25C 204
Work in process*WIP") 73€ -
Other 20C 214
Total prepaid expenses and other current a $ 1,35: $ 55C
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4. Property and Equipment
Property and equipment consist of the followingtiousands):

As of December 31

2013 2012
Computers, software, furniture and fixtu $ 54¢ % 47¢E
Less accumulated depreciation and amortize (214) (145)
Property and equipment, r $ 33 $ 33C

Depreciation and amortization expense is $144,899,000 and $26,000 for the years ended Decemh&038, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
5. Accrued Expenses
Accrued expenses consist of the following (in trands):

As of December 31

2013 2012
Salaries, payroll taxes, vacation and ben: $ 706 % 621
Accrued consulting fees and ott 272 18z
Total accrued expens $ 97¢ $ 804

6. Convertible Debt
There is no convertible debt outstanding at Decer@be2013 and 2012. All of the convertible debswanverted to common stock on December 14, 2011.
Senior Convertible Secured Notes- 2007

We had convertible promissory notes (“Senior Cotilvier Secured Notes-2007") that bore interest atgiteater of 8% or LIBOR plus 3% interest per annum
convertible into shares of our common stock atrégir@l conversion price of $87.50 per share outditag. The Senior Convertible Secured Notes — 20872
originally due August 26, 2010. On September 22020ve entered into a debt modification agreemettt tlve two holders of an aggregate of $126,36@oofvertible
promissory notes that were due on August 26, 2B&6ed on the terms of the modification, this tratisa qualified as a debt extinguishment underéevant
accounting guidance. As part of the debt extinguisht, the maturity date of the convertible promigsmtes was extended until April 26, 2011. We sdento a
debt-for-equity repayment plan whereby we retitezl¢onvertible promissory notes in equal installtsday issuing our common stock priced at a 15%odistfrom
the average market closing price for the five dayding on the 25th of each month over the eighttmpariod beginning September 26, 2010 ending onil 26,
2011. The holders of the notes had the right tved the outstanding balance priced at $2.25 Iperesif the market value of our common stock wasitgr than $2.5
per share for five consecutive days.

During the year ended December 31, 2011, we istheedote holders 31,570 shares of our common gtoduant to the debt-for-equity repayment plan and
retired the remaining note principal balance onil&3§, 2011. We recorded $84,657 of note principaluction and $1,054 of interest payment.

September 2009 Senior Convertible Secured NotemEimg Transaction

During the period from August 25, 2009 through Deber 15, 2009, we completed a private placemeotw¥ertible notes totaling $987,000 that were
converted, at the holder’s option, into sharesusfammmon stock at a conversion price of $0.50spere (the “Convertible Notes - 2009”). The cotilaé note
holders had the right to have the conversion @djasted to equal the lower stock price if we issc@mnmon stock or convertible notes at a lower eosion price
than $0.50 per share during the period that thesere outstanding. The Convertible Notes - 2688were originally due on December 31, 2010 wgteneled to
June 30, 2011 (see below under Warrant RepricidgDabt Extension Financing Transaction — 2010)lzov@ an annual interest rate of 7%, payable on 30rand
December 31 of each year that the convertible neée outstanding. In addition, we issued 986,988a-year warrants to the convertible note holdétts an
exercise price of $1.00 per share. The warrantshmagxercised and converted to common stock, atéinent holder’s option, beginning on the sionth anniversal
of the date of issuance until the warrant expiratiate. During the year ended December 31, 20lissued 1,851,486 shares of our common stock teeholaf
Convertible Notes — 2009 who converted principab®£2,036 and $13,707 of related accrued inte@gstlune 30, 2011, we paid in cash the remainingtanding
principal balance of $25,000 of Convertible NoteZ3089. As of December 31, 2011, all of the ConbkrtNotes — 2009 had been paid in full with cashave been
converted to shares of our common stock.
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The embedded conversion feature of the Converfilbkes — 2009 met the definition of a derivativafigial instrument and was classified as a liabifity
accordance with relevant accounting guidance. Tite nolders had the right to convert the debt ghares of our common stock, and the notes inclpded
protection whereby these notes were protectedsftoreg as the notes remained outstanding againstfprivate placements made at lower share pracestherefore,
the total number of shares of our common stockttifetonvertible notes could be convertible ints wat fixed. The embedded conversion features ves@ued on
each balance sheet date and marked-to-markethetbhange recorded to non-cash items related tad@munts, deferred financing fees and the vadnaif
conversion features and warrants in the consolidstttements of operations. As a result of the emions and repayments during the year ended Dexedib2011,
the Company reclassified approximately $4.6 millidrihe related derivative liabilities to additidnqeid-in capital. As of December 31, 2011, the falue of the
remaining embedded conversion features was $0cdiine repayment or conversion of all the Convegtlidotes - 2009. The Company recorded a loss ofRlidn
due to the change in the fair value of the embeddedersion features of these Convertible NoteBG92luring the year ended December 31, 2011.

During the year ended December 31, 2011, we redadetal of $15,000 in interest expense relatetiéqrincipal balance of the Convertible NoteD82
Senior Convertible Secured Notes- 2010

During the period from January 2010 through June28@0, we received $1,597,000 in cash proceedsameerted $163,000 of accounts payable related to
private placement of convertible notes (“Conveetiblotes — 2010”) and stock purchase warrants theg wonvertible, at the holder’s option, into skarkour
common stock at a conversion price of $0.50 pereshad we issued 1,760,712 stock purchase wattzitbad an exercise price of $1.00 per sharec®heertible
note holders had the right to have the conversime @djusted to equal the lower stock price ifiggied stock or convertible notes at a lower caigarprice than
$0.50 during the period that the notes were outistgn These convertible notes were originally doebecember 31, 2010 and were extended to June)2Q, (Bee
below under Warrant Repricing and Debt Extensiorafting Transaction — 2010) and bore an annuakstteate of 7%, payable on June 30 and Decembef &ich
year that the convertible notes were outstandihg. Warrants may be exercised and converted to constock, at the warrant holder’s option, beginronghe six-
month anniversary date of issuance until the waegpiration date. During the year ended DecemeB11, we issued 3,557,171 shares of our commook &
holders of Convertible Notes — 2010 who converteédcipal of $1,750,143 and $28,442 of related aedrimterest. As of December 31, 2011, all of thev@atible
Notes— 2010 had been converted to shares of our comtook.s

The embedded conversion feature of the Converibkes — 2010 met the definition of a derivativeaficial instrument and was classified as a liabitity
accordance with accounting guidance. The note hellzd the right to convert the debt into sharesuofcommon stock, and the notes include priceeptimn
whereby these notes were protected for as lonigeasdtes remained outstanding against future jgripleicements made at lower share prices, and theréfie total
number of shares of our common stock that the atibl@notes could be convertible into was not ix€he embedded conversion features were revaliedch
balance sheet date and marked-to-market with ttredse or decrease in fair value was recordedriecash items related to debt discounts and defémadcing fees
and the valuation of conversion features and wésriarthe consolidated statements of operations Aesult of the conversions during the year erdscember 31,
2011, the Company reclassified approximately $8lifom of the related derivative liabilities to aitidnal paid-in capital. As of December 31, 2011 fair value of
the remaining embedded conversion features is $ll e Convertible Notes — 2010 were convertdte Tompany recorded a loss of approximately $4ldomidue
to the change in the fair value of the embedded@&mion feature of these Convertible Notes — 2Qdrfhgd the year ended December 31, 2011.
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During the year ended December 31, 2011 we recadethl of approximately $28,000 of interest exgeerelated to the principal balance of the Conlerti
Notes— 2010.

Warrant Repricing and Debt Extension Financing Taction - 2010

During September and October 2010, all of the hrsldéthe convertible notes and the holders ofthek purchase warrants issued in the 2009 and 2010
Senior Secured Convertible Debt Financing Transastagreed to extend the maturity date of theivedible debt from December 31, 2010 to June 3Q12thder
the same terms and conditions as the original nbtelslers of 2,766,857 stock purchase warrantsadseed to exercise their previously granted tlyesg-warrants
with an exercise price of $1.00 for a discounteereise price of $0.88 per share. They received&8B7 shares of our common stock and 2,766,853acepient
three-year warrants with an exercise price of $108&ach warrant exercised. We raised a totalof $illion by these warrant exercises. In accoceanith relevant
accounting guidance, we noted that the transaqiiadified for debt extinguishment accounting. A®sult, the remaining debt discounts were writtfraod charged
to interest expense and fair value of the replacemvarrants were recorded to loss on extinguishroedebt, which was deemed to be the date thatdheertible dek
holder signed the modification agreement. As then@any did not have sufficient unissued authorizeates to cover all dilutive instruments until therease in
authorized shares on December 13, 2010, thesecespéat warrants were initially recorded as denealiabilities at their grant date fair value. Ord@mber 13, 201
the Company increased its authorized shares ancht sufficient authorized shares to cover alltdlié instruments and as such the replacement atarveere re-
valued on that date (totaling $4,335,785) and tbea@any reclassified the replacement warrants tdiadel paid-in-capital in accordance with relevaotounting
guidance.

Senior Convertible Secured Notes- 2011

During March and April 2011, we received approxirhagt.2 million in cash proceeds related to a gevalacement of convertible notes (“Senior
Convertible Secured Notes — 2011"), bearing inteaea rate of seven percent (7%) per annum, thatsgheduled to mature on March 1, 2014 and tha&t wer
convertible at the holder’s option into 1,691,3pares of our common stock at a conversion prick2d0 per share. The notes were automatically atibieinto
shares of the Company’s common stock in the eVvexitan or before the note due date either (a) tragany’s common stock was traded at a price peef$6.25
or higher for five (5) consecutive trading days(lmrthe Company consummated a financing in theusrnof at least $5 million. The accrued intereasywayable in
stock, using the $2.50 conversion price, or catstheaholder’s option, on June 30 and Decembef&hch year.

In connection with the March and April 2011 finargimansactions the Company valued the warrantedsguthe convertible note holders on a relative fa
value basis using the Black-Scholes option prichaglel, totaling $937,000. This relative fair vahfehe warrants was recorded as a debt discouetefitbedded
conversion feature of the notes was determinedetet e definition of a derivative liability and afsthe date of issuance was valued at $4.8 milliomccordance
with relevant accounting guidance, the Companyrasmban additional debt discount up to the fulefamount of the notes, recorded the derivativélitialior the
embedded conversion feature at $4.8 million andrdal the fair value in excess of face amount bf ds interest expense on the issuance date of@llién. The
debt discount was amortized in full upon the cosiger of the notes to common stock on December @#1.2As of December 31, 2011, the fair value ofetrdedded
conversion feature was $0 due to the conversiall tifie Senior Convertible Secure Notes — 2011. Company recorded a loss of $1.9 million due tocthenge in
fair value of the embedded conversion featuretferyiear ended December 31, 2011 which is includéidei accompanying consolidated statement of dpasas a
component of the non-cash items related to debbdigs and deferred financing fees and the valuati@onversion features and warrants.

During the year ended December 31, 2011, the Coyniganed 27,851 shares of unregistered common sbtauéte holders of the Senior Convertible Secured
Notes— 2011 private placement financing transactionein bf cash for their $69,628 accrued interest patrthat was due June 30, 2011. In addition, thegamy
paid $10,277 of the accrued interest in cash te holders who declined to convert their intereginpent to stock.

During the year ended December 31 2011, the Comigangd 422,830 new five-year common stock purchaseants to the investors, with an exercise price
of $3.13 per share (the “March 2011 Warrants”), widich investor receiving a number of March 2011 Whusrthat is equal to twenty-five percent (25%fhef
investor’s note to the Company. The March 2011 Afdasrmay be exercised by cash payment or throwgjtiess exercise by the surrender of warrant sthanéag a
value equal to the exercise price of the portiothefwarrants being exercised.
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In October and November 2011, note holders of $8XBpf the original $4.2 million Senior Convertil8ecure Notes — 2011 exercised their right to cdnve
their notes and accrued interest and were issu2d 23 shares of our common stock.

On December 13, 2011, following a public offeringguant to a Registration Statement on Form Se3Ctimpany received gross proceeds in excess of $5
million. Pursuant to the terms, as defined, in$leaior Convertible Secure Notes — 2011 agreemibigsemaining outstanding principal balance immtedija
following such date, plus accrued interest, wasraatically convertible into shares of common statk conversion price of $2.50 per share. In acguré with the
terms of the agreement, the Company automaticaltyerted approximately $3.7 million of remainingngipal and approximately $130,000 of accrued egeimto
1,513,237 shares of the Company’s common stockddtition, the Company issued 99,461 shares of canstozk related to the bonus interest feature &tsaicwith
the mandatory conversion of the debt. The fair @alfithe shares issued were computed based otottiesice of the Company’s common stock on Decertle
2011 and were valued at $397,845 and recordedditsomél interest expense in non-cash items reladatebt discounts and deferred financing feestiaadaluation
of conversion features and warrants in the conatditi statement of operations. As a result of tiwesions and repayments of the Senior Converiblure Notes -
2011 during the year ended December 31, 2011, ¢hep@ny reclassified approximately $6.7 million efigative liabilities to additional paiih capital. The Compar
recorded a loss of $1.9 million for the year enBedember 31, 2011 due to the change in fair vafitlkeoembedded conversion features. As of Dece®ibe2011, th
fair value of the embedded conversion features®ag\s of December 31, 2011, all of the Senior @utible Secure Notes - 2011 plus accrued interastpaid or
converted into shares of common stock.

During the year ended December 31, 2011 we recadethl of approximately $232,000 in interest exgeerelated to the principal balance of the Senior
Convertible Secured Notes — 2011.

7. Fair Value Measurements

Accounting guidance defines fair value, establish&smework for measuring fair value, and expatidslosure requirements about fair value measurtsnen
The accounting guidance does not mandate any riewafae measurements and is applicable to asadtiabilities that are required to be recordethatvalue under
other accounting pronouncements.

There were no assets or liabilities recorded atue on a recurring basis in 2013 and 2012.

The three levels of the fair value hierarchy arecdéed as follows:

Level 1: Applies to assets or liabilities for whitttere are quoted prices (unadjusted) in activékketafor identical assets and liabilities. We had_avel 1 assets or
liabilities.

Level 2: Applies to assets or liabilities for whitttere are inputs other than quoted prices inclidéevel 1 that are observable, either directlyndlirectly. We had n
Level 2 assets or liabilities.

Level 3: Applies to assets or liabilities for whitttere are unobservable inputs to the valuatiomougtiogy that are significant to the measuremetiefair value of
the assets or liabilities. We valued warrants anbexlded conversion features that were without ebbée market values and the valuation requiredjh tavel of
judgment to determine fair value (Level 3 input)e Company estimated the fair value of these wtsrand embedded conversion features using th&-Scholes
option pricing model using the following assumpson

For the yea
ended
December 31,
2011
Annual dividend yielc -
Expected life (years 0.08-3.C
Risk-free interest rat 0.08%- 1.27%
Expected volatility 110%- 265%

The following table shows the classification of diabilities that were subject to fair value measuents and the rofbrward of these liabilities for the ye
ended December 31, 2011 (in thousands):

Fair Value of Embedded Conversion Features and Waants

January 1, 201 $ 6,71¢
Derivatives added in connection with issuasfodebt and equit 4,762
Derivatives reclassified to equity in connectiorthaiepaymeniand conversion of del (20,075
Net increase in fair valt 8,59
December 31, 201 $ -
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8. Deferred Revenue

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, we have $2.5omidind $2.1 million, respectively, of deferrecklise fee revenue related to prepayments for future
license fees from three customers and a total &f #llion and $0.6 million, respectively, of defed engineering development fees from twenty-omkthinteen
customers, respectively. We defer the license deébwe have met all accounting requirements émenue recognition as per unit royalty productsigsgibuted or
licensed by the Company’s customers and the engigegevelopment fee revenue until such time aetiggneering work has been completed and acceptedrb
customers.

9. Stockholders’ Equity

On February 29, 2012, the Company filed a Certificz Correction with the Secretary of State ofddere effectively reducing the amount of its authext
shares from 848,000,000 shares of Common StocR 08,000 shares of Preferred Stock to 70,000,68es of Common Stock and 1,000,000 shares ofriRedfe
Stock. This correction reflects the new capitalature of the Company following its 1-for-25 revesplit that became effective at the close of lesron March 25,
2011.

On May 1, 2012, the Company began trading its comsbock on the NASDAQ Stock Market under the tradimgbol NEON.

Common Stock

During the year ended December 31, 2013, warrddeho(excluding our CEO, CFO and member of ourrBaé Directors) exercised warrants to purchase
1,815,368 shares of common stock using the caskdessise provision allowed in the warrant and iz 1,384,719 shares of our common stock. In additvarran
holders exercised warrants to purchase 429,53@sloficommon stock and paid a cash exercise @iging between $1.00 and $3.13 per share forc¢atdd
proceeds of approximately $714,000.

On February 26, 2013, David Brunton, our CFO, dsertwarrants to purchase 320,000 shares of constnoh using the cashless exercise provision allc
in the warrant and received 266,228 shares of aomaon stock.

On August 12, 2013, Thomas Eriksson, our CEO, és@dovarrants to purchase 400,000 shares of corstook using the cashless exercise provision
allowed in the warrant and received 326,608 shafresir common stock.

On August 12, 2013, Per Bystedt, the Chairman oBmard of Directors (“Board”)exercised warrants to purchase 387,773 shareswwhoa stock using tr
cashless exercise provision allowed in the waraadtreceived 316,624 shares of our common stock.

On August 12, 2013, Phenning Holdings Ltd, a comppammtrolled by Per Bystedt, the Chairman of ouail exercised warrants to purchase 227,661 shares
of common stock using the cashless exercise poyvaiowed in the warrant and received 182,890eshaf our common stock.

On August 12, 2013, Davisa Ltd, a company contdotlg Mats Dahlin, a member of our Board, exercisadants to purchase 215,724 shares of common
stock using the cashless exercise provision allawdde warrant and received 176,143 shares otonmmon stock.
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On August 12, 2013, John Reardon, a member of oard exercised warrants to purchase 80,000 sbhoesnmon stock using the cashless exercise
provision allowed in the warrant and received 63,8Rares of our common stock.

On September 16, 2013, we issued 1,168,939 shioes common stock to investors in connection vaithequity financing transaction in which we raised
approximately $7.7 million and received approxinha®6.9 million in cash, net of underwriting commisns, direct offering costs including legal, awdit other
regulatory costs of approximately $0.8 million.

On March 16, 2012, John Reardon, a member of oudhafairectors, exercised a warrant to purchage@® shares of common stock using the net exercise
provision allowed in the warrant and received 198,ghares of our common stock.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, warmadehs (excluding members of our board of diregterercised warrants to purchase 361,000 shares of
common stock using the net exercise provision atbwm the warrant and received 235,144 sharesrat@amon stock. Warrant holders exercised warrants
purchase 17,500 shares of common stock and pashaexercise price of $3.13 per share for totateeds of $54,775. In addition, during 2012 a warnatder
exercised a warrant to purchase 122,238 sharemuhon stock and paid a cash exercise price of §ieB8hare for total proceeds of $168,668.

During the year ended December 31, 2011, the Coyniganed a total of 5,408,657 shares of commorkste@ result of the conversion of approximately
$2.7 million of the Senior Convertible Secured Note2009 and 2010 private placement financing &etitns debt principal and accrued interest.

During the year ended December 31, 2011, the Coynmeived proceeds of approximately $515,000 filoenexercise of 493,426 warrants for shares of
common stock.

During the year ended December 31, 2011, we istheedote holders of Senior Convertible Secured N2607 31,570 shares of our common stock pursuant
to the debt-for-equity repayment plan and retitelremaining note principal balance and accruedést totaling $86,000 on April 26, 2011.

During the year ended December 31, 2011, the Coyniganed 60,000 shares of common stock and iss@egkar warrant to purchase 20,000 shares of
common stock at an exercise price of $2.00 pereshasatisfaction of certain accrued expensesingt&120,000.

On April 25, 2011, Davisa Ltd (a company controllsdMats Dahlin, a member of our Board) exercisetravas to purchase 50,000 shares of common stock.
The Company recorded an additional $50,000 as $taskd compensation to compensate Davisa Ltd bsingaihe $1.00 exercise price and issued 50,00@stat
our common stock to Davisa Ltd for services proglideconnection with the private placement of catilbke notes and warrants in the March 2011 finagcin
transaction.

During the year ended December 31, 2011, the Coyniganed 27,851 shares of unregistered common sbauéte holders of the Senior Convertible Secured
Notes— 2011 private placement financing transactiornein bf cash for their $69,628 accrued interest paytrthat was due June 30, 2011 (see Note 6).

During the year ended December 31, 2011, we istheedote holders of Senior Convertible Secured 2611 a total of 1,844,814 shares of our common
stock and retired the note principal balance ardugd interest totaling $4.6 million. Included frettotal shares issued of 1,844,814 is 99,461 shireommon stock
issued for bonus interest (as determined) totz33@g,000.

During the year ended December 31, 2011, we is3iedhillion shares of our common stock to investeh® completed an equity financing transaction that

closed on December 13, 2011 in which we raised0fi@llion and received $11.2 million in cash, nétlvect selling costs but before other direct dffg costs of
approximately $0.4 million.
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Preferred Stock

On March 21, 2013, Series A Preferred stockholderhanged 83 shares of Series A Preferred stockXat90 shares of our common stock, eliminating all
Series A Preferred shares outstanding.

On February 27, 2013, Series B Preferred stockielebechanged 4 shares of Series B Preferred sto&28 shares of our common stock.
On March 21, 2013, Series B Preferred stockholdarsanged 8 shares of Series B Preferred stockf@isBares of our common stock.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, Serieef@iiPed stockholders exchanged 19 shares of S2fsferred stock for 2,509 shares of our common
stock.

During the year ended December 31, 2011, SeriesefeiPed stockholders exchanged 82.79 shares @sS&iPreferred stock for 39,790 shares of our
common stock, and Series B Preferred stockholdetsamged 26.04 shares of Series B Preferred stodk 282 shares of our common stock.

The terms of the Series A and Series B Prefermksire as follows:
° Dividends and Distribution:

Series A Preferrec The holders of shares of Series A Preferred staale wntitled to participate with the holders of oammon stock with respect to a
dividends declared on the common stock in propotiiothe number of shares of common stock issugide conversion of the
shares of Series A Preferred stock held by tt

Series B Preferre( The holders of shares of Series B Preferred stozkititled to participate with the holders of common stock with respect to a
dividends declared on the common stock in propotiiothe number of shares of common stock issugide conversion of the
shares of Series B Preferred stock held by tt

° Liguidation Preference

Series A Preferrec In the event of any liquidation, dissolution, omaing up of our operations, either voluntary oraluntary, subject to the rights of &
other series of Preferred stock to be establislyetieoBoard of Directors (the “Senior Preferredc8td, the holders of Series A
Preferred stock shall be entitled to receive, after distribution to the holders of Senior Prefér&ock and prior to and in preference
to any distribution to the holders of common st@®,001 for each share of Series A Preferred stosk outstanding

Series B Preferre( In the event of any liquidation, dissolution, omaing up of our operations, either voluntary oraluntary, subject to the rights of t
Series A Preferred stock and Senior Preferred Stbekholders of Series B Preferred stock shadiriitled to receive, after any
distribution to the holders of Senior Preferredc&tand prior to and in preference to any distritmutio the holders of common stock,
$0.001 for each share of Series B Preferred stomk vutstanding

e \Voting

The holders of shares of Series A Preferred stadkSeries B Preferred stock shall have one votedoh share of Series A Preferred stock and SBries
Preferred stock held by them.

° Conversior
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stock for each shares of Series B Preferred stbak,completing the restructuring begun in Decer2668.

Initially, each share of Series A Preferred stoott each share of Series B Preferred stock was dilvieento one share of our common stock. Any
modification to the conversion rate requires shaldgr approval (see below). On March 31, 2009, bareholders approved a resolution to increaseuti®ezed
share capital, and to increase the conversion t@d&0.63 shares of common stock for each shaseés A Preferred stock and to 132.07 sharearat@mmon

Conversion of Preferred Stock Issued to Common Ktoc

convert their preferred stock to shares of our comstock. The following table summarizes the ant®ahDecember 31, 2013:

On April 24, 2009, we initiated the process of wilog the shareholders of our preferred stock toredrthe Series A and B Preferred stock to shdresio
common stock. In order to convert the preferredisto common stock each preferred stock shareh@denquired to submit the preferred stock ceuifécto our
transfer agent and request conversion to commaf.sttne conversion to common stock is not mandaoc shareholders who own preferred stock may ehonostc

Shares of
Common Stock
after
Conversion of
all Outstanding

Shares of Shares of
Preferred Preferred
Stock Not Stock Not yet

Exchanged as

Exchanged at

of December Conversion December 31,
31,2013 Ratio 2013
83 132.0° 10,96:

Series B preferred sto«

10. Stock-Based Compensation

We have several approved stock option plans fockvkiock options and restricted stock awards aaéadole to grant to employees, consultants ancttdirs. All
employee and director stock options granted undestck option plans have an exercise price eguidle market value of the underlying common stmckhe grant
date. There are no vesting provisions tied to perémce conditions for any options, as vesting flooatstanding option grants was based only oninaetl service as
an employee, consultant or director. All of ourstabding stock options and restricted stock awareglassified as equity instruments.

Stock Options
As of December 31, 2013, we had two equity incengilans:

« The 1998 No-Officer Stock Option Plan (th*1998 Pla”), which expired in June 2008; a
« The 2006 Equity Incentive Plan (t“2006 Pla").

We also had one non-employee director stock ogtian as of December 31, 2013:

« The 2001 No-Employee Director Stock Option Plan (i Director Pla"), which expired in March 201
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The following table summarizes information withpest to all options to purchase shares of commmrksiutstanding under the 1996 Plan, the 1998 Fa
2006 Plan and the Director Plan at December 313:201

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted
Average
Number Remaining Weighted Number Weighted
Range ofExercise Outstanding at Contractual Life Average Exercisable at Average
Price 12/31/13 (years) Exercise Prict 12/31/13 Exercise Prict

$$4.02- $4.25 1,241,00( 53 $ 4.24 1,097,69: $ 4.25
$4.26- $7.70 348,58: 6.1 $ 5.43 114,52¢ $ 5.2E
$7.71- $122.5( 11,00( 0.7 $ 108.4f 11,00C $ 108.4f
1,600,58: 54 $ 5.22 1,223,22( $ 5.28

A summary of the combined activity under all of #teck option plans is set forth below:

Weighted
Average Weighte«-
Number of Exercise Prict Average
Shares Per Shar Exercise Prict
Outstanding at January 1, 2C 19,80« $35.39-687.5( $ 101.3¢
Granted — $ — $ —
135.00-

Cancelled or expire (480 $ 687.5( $ 523.2!
Exercisec — $ — $ —
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 19,32: $35.39-368.7F $ 92.1¢
Grantec 1,704,000 $ 4.02-6.2¢ $ 4.3t
Cancelled or expire (8,12¢9) $35.39-368.7¢ $ 69.3¢€
Exercisec — $ — $ —
Outstanding, vested and expected to vest at Deze8ih 201: 1,715,200 $ 4.02-125.0( $ 5.04
Grantec 145,00 $ 554-77C $ 6.0€
Cancelled or expire (18,25¢p $ 4.25-125.00( $ 5.57
Exercisec (241,36) $ 4.25-6.2¢ $ 4.3¢
Outstanding, vested and expected to vest at Deze8ih 201: 1,600,58: $ 4.02-122.5( $ 5.22

The assumptions used to value stock options grdatdulectors, employees and consultants duriny¢ae ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 are aw

For the yea
ended
December 31,
2013
Annual dividend yielc -
Expected life (years 4.3
Risk-free interest rat 0.65%- 2.15%
Expected volatility 117%- 15%
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For the yea

ended
December 31,
2012
Annual dividend yielc -
Expected life (years 3.8-4.2
Risk-free interest rat 0.43%- 0.62%
Expected volatility 169%- 187%

The aggregate intrinsic value of the 1,600,583kstptions that are outstanding, vested and expeocteedst at December 31, 2013 is $2,906,724.

During the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012@bd, the Company recorded $2.5 million, $3.4 omlland $87,000, respectively, of compensation
expense related to the vesting of stock options.f@lr value of the stock-based compensation wigsileded using the Black-Scholes option pricing elabs of the
grant date of the stock option.

The 1996 Plan terminated effective January 17, 2806 the 1998 Plan terminated effective June Q882Although we can no longer issue stock optamuts
of the plans, the outstanding options at the datermination will remain outstanding and vest atardance with their terms. Options granted unideirector Plan
vest over a one to four-year period, expire fivaggen years after the date of grant and haveisgqudces reflecting market value of the sharesunfcommon stock
on the date of grant. Stock options granted urtded996, 1998 and 2006 Plans are exercisable anwaxenum term of ten years from the date of greest in variou
installments over a one to four-year period ancetexercise prices reflecting the market value efsares of common stock on the date of grant.

During the year ended December 31, 2013, the Coynameived an aggregate of $1.1 million from fivepdoyees in connection with the exercise of stock
options into 241,361 shares of common stock. Tigeeggte intrinsic value of the options exercised §02,000 on the dates of exercise.

We granted options to purchase 145,000 sharesrafomomon stock to three employees during the yede& December 31, 2013 with an aggregate gran
fair value of approximately $748,000 computed ushegBlack-Scholes option pricing model. The opgibiave a 7-year life and 1/3 of the options aréedesn the
one year anniversary date of grant with the remgito vest monthly over the remaining 24-months.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, we grdnfetb,000 options to purchase shares of our constomk to employees and 360,000 options to
purchase shares of our common stock to membensr@aard. During the year ended December 31, 20&yranted 169,000 options to purchase sharesrof ou
common stock to a consultant.

We did not grant any options to purchase sharesiofommon stock to employees, consultants or mesydfeour Board during the year ended December 31,
2011.

Warrants

During the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2&tfin warrant holders exercised their warrantdeurthe cash and cashless exercise provisio
defined in the agreements. See Note 9 for dethg8siach exercises and number of common stock shesesd.

On December 3, 2010, we issued 120,000 warraiais exercise price of $1.63 per share to an empldyeefair value of the warrants was $198,000 en th

date of grant, using the Black-Scholes option pganodel, which has been amortized to expenseZ¥eronths. During the years ended December 31, 20d2
2011, we recorded $91,000, and $99,000, respegtiobstock based compensation expense relateelsting of such warrants.
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We issued 80,000 five-year stock purchase warkrds exercise price of $2.50 per share to out kdyasor during the year ended December 31, 204l.
also issued 20,000 three-year stock purchase viaraaan exercise price of $2.00 per share to bperdJ.S. based employees during the year endedrbleer 31,
2011. In addition, we issued 20,000 three-yearkspocchase warrants at an exercise price or $405hmre to an engineering consultant during tlae geded
December 31, 2011. These warrants to purchasegaagage of 120,000 shares of our common stock destehe date of grant. The vested warrant gratotedr lege
advisor had a fair value on the date of grant &3$200 and is included in general and administeatixpense for the year ended December 31, 201 lveRted
warrant granted to our employee had a fair valutherdate of grant of $37,000 and is included §eaech and development expense for the year engleshiiber 31,
2011. The vested warrant granted to our engineeogngultant had a fair value on the date of gr&a#78,000 and is included in research and developepense for
the year ended December 31, 2011.

We issued 20,000 three-year stock purchase warahats exercise price of $3.90 per share with &ngperiod over 24 months to an employee durirg th
year ended December 31, 2011. The unvested waranted to an employee had a fair value on theafageant of $75,000. This amount was expensed iheer
vesting period and $26,000, $38,000 and $11,0@Xpénse related to this warrant is included inaeteand development expense for the year endeenivesr 31,
2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively. The fair valustack-based compensation related to the issuaingarrants is calculated using the Black-Scholg#oa pricing
model as of the grant date of the underlying wadrran

On April 4, 2013, we extended a 40,000 stock pwehearrant with an exercise price of $1.00 perestiat expired on January 28, 2013 that was istuad
investor in a previous convertible debt financifie fair value of the warrant was $166,000 on tie df grant, using the Black-Scholes option pgigimodel, which
has been expensed during the year ended Decem201R. The warrant holder exercised the warrarAmnil 4, 2013 and the Company received cash padseé
$40,000 (see Note 9).

The stock-based compensation expense for the gadesi December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 reflecfaithealue of the vested portion of options and
warrants granted to directors, employees and nquiegrees.

Years ende:
December 31
2013 2012 2011
Research and developm: $ 267 $ 31t $ 11
Sales and marketir 90¢ 1,407 99
General and administrati 1,48( 1,777 44C
Stock compensation exper $ 2,65¢ $ 3,49¢ $ 55C
Remaining
unamortized
expense at
December 31,
2013
Stocl-based compensatic $ 1,751

The remaining unamortized expense related to siptikns and warrants will be recognized on a shidige basis monthly as compensation expensetheer
remaining vesting period which approximates 2.9%yea
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A summary of all warrant activity is set forth bato

Weighted
Weighted Average
Average Remaining
Exercise Contractual
Outstanding and exercisat Warrants Price Life
January 1, 201 5,405,600 $ 1.57 2.4¢
Issuec - - -
Expired/forfeitec (232 $ 31.7¢ -
Exercisec (700,739 $ 1.1¢ -
December 31, 201 4,704,631 $ 1.61 1.41
Issuec - - -
Expired/forfeitec - - -
Exercisec (3,876,06) $ 1.4 -
Outstanding and exercisable, December 31, : 828,57, $ 2.3¢ 2.0¢€

During the year ended December 31, 2011, the Coyniganed 422,830 new five-year common stock puehasrants, with an exercise price of 3.13 per
share (see Note 6).

The fair value of stock-based awards is calculatedg the Black-Scholes option pricing model, etr@mugh this model was developed to estimate thie fai
value of freely tradable, fully transferable opsomithout vesting restrictions, which differ sigo#ntly from our stock options. The Black-Scholesdel also requires
subjective assumptions, including future stockepriolatility and expected time to exercise, whichagly affect the calculated values. The expeated tand forfeiture
rate of options granted is derived from historidata on employee exercises and post-vesting emplolytermination behavior, as well as expected biehan
outstanding options and warrants. The risk-free imbased on the U.S. Treasury rates in effeéhgltine corresponding period of grant. The expevtgdtility is
based on the historical volatility of our stockgeri These factors could change in the future, wivietild affect fair values of stock options graniteduch future
periods, and could cause volatility in the totaloamt of the stock-based compensation expense egpiorfuture periods.

Below is a summary of Outstanding Warrants to Purclase
Common Stock as of December 31, 2013:

Exercise Expiration

Description Issue Date Price Shares Date
August 2009 Employee Warrar 8/25/200¢ $ 0.5C 80,00( 8/25/201t
2007 Debt Extension Warrar 9/22/201( $ 1.0C 16,00( 9/22/201!
December 2010 Employee Warra 12/3/201( $ 1.6: 200,00( 12/3/201!
January 2011 Employee Warr: 1/21/201: $ 2.0C 7,00C 1/21/201-
February 2011 Legal Advisor Warre 2/22/201: $ 2.5C 80,00( 2/22/201¢
March 2011 Investor Warrar 3/9/201: $ 3.1< 371,47 3/9/201¢
March 2011 Investor Warrar 4/7/201: $ 3.1< 34,10( 4/7/201¢
May 2011 Consultant Warra 5/17/201: $ 4.0t 20,00( 5/17/201-
September 2011 Employee Warr 9/12/201: $ 3.9C 20,00( 9/12/201-
Total Warrants Outstanding 828,57
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11. Commitments and Contingencies
Indemnities and Guarantees

We have agreed to indemnify each of our executifieens and directors for certain events or ocauees arising as a result of the officer or direstmving ir
such capacity. The term of the indemnification peiis for the officer’'s or director’s lifetime. Thmaximum potential amount of future payments wddbe required
to make under these indemnification agreementslimited. However, we have a directors’ and off&¢diability insurance policy that should enabketo recover a
portion of future amounts paid. As a result of msurance policy coverage, we believe the estimiziedalue of these indemnification agreementwmiisimal and
have no liabilities recorded for these agreemestsf @ecember 31, 2013 and 2012.

We enter into indemnification provisions under agreements with other companies in the ordinaryseoaf business, typically with business partners,
contractors, customers and landlords. Under thesgsions we generally indemnify and hold harmiggsindemnified party for losses suffered or inedrby the
indemnified party as a result of our activitiesiarsome cases, as a result of the indemnified/jgaattivities under the agreement. These indewatithn provisions
often include indemnifications relating to repres¢ions made by us with regard to intellectual proprights. These indemnification provisions getigrsurvive
termination of the underlying agreement. The maxinpotential amount of future payments we coulddepiired to make under these indemnification prowisiis
unlimited. We have not incurred material costsefedd lawsuits or settle claims related to thedenmification agreements. As a result, we belibeesstimated fair
value of these agreements is minimal. Accordingly have no liabilities recorded for these indeneation provisions as of December 31, 2013 and 2012.

Non-Recurring Engineering Development Costs

Neonode and Texas Instruments Inc. (“TI") entergd an Analog Device Development Agreement on Fafyrd, 2011 and effective as of January 24, 2010
(the “NN1001 Agreement”) pursuant to which Tl intaged Neonode’s intellectual property into an Agglion Specific Integrated Circuit (“ASIC”) develkeg by TI.
The TI ASIC is designated as NN1001 and can belspll exclusively to licensees of Neonode. Undherterms of the NN1001 Agreement, Neonode is otdiyto
contribute $500,000 of non-recurring engineerindRE") development costs to Tl based on shipmenteefNN1001. Neonode will contribute to Tl an NRE fof
$0.08 per unit for each of the first one millionitsrsold and $0.05 for the next eight million urstdd.

During the year ended December 31, 2013, $387,0BR& expense related to the NN1001 agreementisded in research and development in the
consolidated statement of operations. Through Dbeee31, 2013, the Company has made total paymégz70,000 under the NN1001 agreement. No amouets w
recorded in the years ended December 31, 2012GkH&s no NN1001 shipments occurred during thosedse

Neonode and Tl entered into an additional Analogi@eDevelopment Agreement on April 25, 2013 effecDecember 6, 2012 (the “NN1002 Agreement”)
pursuant to which TI will integrate Neonode'’s ilgetual property into an ASIC developed by TI. THASIC is designated as NN1002 and can be soldlby
exclusively to licensees of Neonode. Under the $esfrthe NN1002 Agreement, Neonode is obligatezbtdribute $500,000 of NRE to Tl based on shipmehthe
NN1002. The NN1002 is currently in development bad not been released to mass produc

When the NN1002 is released in the future to mesdyztion, Neonode will contribute to Tl the NREefef $0.25 per unit for each of the first two naitii
units sold.

Operating Leases

On March 22, 2012, we entered into a three yeae lEas3,185 square feet of office space locat&2B&0 Mission College Blvd, Suite 190, Santa Clary, C
95054 USA. The initial lease payment is $7,007mpenth, increasing to $7,657 per month over the frthe lease. This lease is valid through July28iL5. The
annual payment for this space equates to approaiyn®86,000 per year.

NTAB has a lease for 2,723 square feet of offiGedocated at Linnegatan 89D, Stockholm, Swedeagdproximately $8,000 per month including property
tax (excluding VAT). The annual payment for thissp equates to approximately $93,000 per yeardimguproperty tax (excluding VAT). This lease idigahru
December 31, 2014, with a nine month notice pei@uSeptember 12, 2013, the Company entered istibl@ase agreement for this office space for wthieh
Company will receive a monthly sublease paymeiippiroximately $9,700 until December 31, 2014.
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On April 15, 2012, NTAB entered into a lease f@53 square feet of office space located at Stong2®&, Stockholm, Sweden for approximately $14,000
per month including property tax (excluding VATh& annual payment for this space equates to appatedy $174,000 per year including property taxclading
VAT). This lease was valid through April 15, 20Tk April 16, 2013, this lease was extended foryeer until April 15, 2014 under the same terms eontlitions.
Rent remained at approximately $14,000 per mordludting property tax (excluding VAT). This leasesstarminated on July 1, 2013.

On October 12, 2012, we entered into a two yeaeléar office space located at 608 Bureau Shinagévia6 Konan, Minato-ku, 108-0075 Tokyo, Japan.
The lease payment is approximately $3,000 per mdtftis lease is valid through October 12, 2014. aheual payment for this space equates to appraeiyna
$36,000 per year.

On July 1, 2013, NTAB entered into a lease for 6,d8uare feet of office space located at Storg2®a) Stockholm, Sweden for approximately $38,000 pe
month including property tax (excluding VAT). Theraal payment for this space equates to approxiyndtb8,000 per year including property tax (exahgdVAT).
This lease is valid through June 30, 2014. Theeleas be extended on a yearly basis with threelmantitten notice.

For the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 arid #6Company recorded approximately $556,0000 800 and $167,000, respectively, for rent
expense.

A summary of future minimum payments under non-eable operating lease commitments as of Dece®be2013 is as follows (in thousands):

Years ending December & Total
2014 $ 31¢
2015 53
7

12. Segment Information

The Company has one reportable segment, whichigidsed of the touch technology licensing businddi<of our sales for the years ended December 31,
2013, 2012 and 2011 were to customers locateckitVtB., Europe and Asia.

The following table presents net revenues by gedgcaegion for the years ended December 31, 2BAR?2 and 2011 (dollars in thousands):

2013
Amount Percentag
Net revenues from customers in the L $ 1,89¢ 51%
Net revenues from customers in Eur 30¢ 8%
Net revenues from customers in A 1,51 41%
Total $ 3,71 100(%
2012
Amount Percentag
Net revenues from customers in the L $ 5,17¢ 73%
Net revenues from customers in Eur 15¢ 2%
Net revenues from customers in A 1,80¢ 25%
Total $ 7,13 100%
2011
Amount Percentag
Net revenues from customers in the L $ 4,73¢ 78%
Net revenues from customers in Eur 53 1%
Net revenues from customers in A 1,27¢ 21%
Total $ 6,06 100%
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13. Income Taxes

Loss before provision for income taxes was distedwgeographically for the years ended Decembeasigllows (in thousands):

Domestic
Foreign

Total

The provision for income taxes is as follows fag tfears ended December 31 (in thousands):

Current
Federal
State
Foreign
Change in deferre
Federa
Federal valuation allowan:
State
State valuation allowant
Foreign
Foreign valuation allowanc

Total curren
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2013 2012 2011

(12,87) $ (10,28) $ (16,86

(94) 1,121 (200)

(12,97) $ (9,167 $ (17,067
2013 2012 2011

- - % -

2 2 2

107 122 76

(3,799 (3,659 (1,856)

3,79¢ 3,65¢ 1,85¢

12¢ 452 (206)

(129 (459) 20€

111 27€ 122

(111) (276) (122)

10¢ 128 $ 78




The differences between our effective income té aad the U.S. federal statutory federal incomedte for the years ended December 31, are amfeil

2013 2012 2011
Amounts at statutory tax rat 34% 34% 34%
Non-deductible loss on revaluation of embedded comverfeatures and extinguishment of convertible
debt -- - (29)%
Foreign losses taxed at different re -- 1% 2%
Stock-based compensatic (3)% (7% --
Other (1) -- --
Total 30% 28% 7%
Valuation allowanct (31)% (29% (7)%
Effective tax rate (1)% (1)% --

Significant components of the deferred tax asskenicas at December 31 are as follows (in thousands)
2013 2012

Deferred tax asset
Accruals $ 1,51¢ 8732
Stock compensatic 1,07C 1,05(
Net operating losse 9,76( 6,417
Total deferred tax asse $ 12,34¢ 8,34(
Basis difference in fixed asse 14 (39
Valuation allowanct (12,335 (8,302)

Total net deferred tax asss $

Valuation allowances are recorded to offset cedaiferred tax assets due to management’s uncgrteintalizing the benefits of these items. Managgme
applies a full valuation allowance for the accuneddosses of Neonode Inc., and its subsidiariesest is not determinable using the “more likeian not” criteria
that there will be any future benefit of our degertax assets. This is mainly due to our historgperating losses. Due to the reorganization, thragainy believes thi
the U.S. net operating losses and credits wouklbgct to the provisions of Section 382 and tlweee$ubject to strict limitations. The Company hascompleted a
study of the limitations and therefore has notudeld these loss carryforwards or credits in théyaizeof the deferred tax assets. At December 3132the Company
has federal, state and foreign net operating lass$28.1 million, $9.3 million and $0, respectiyelhe federal loss carryforward begins to expir2029, the
California loss carryforward begins to expire irl2@nd the foreign loss carryforward is indefin®® December 9, 2008, Neonode AB filed for liquidatunder the
Swedish bankruptcy laws and effective with theafjlive are no longer responsible for the liabiliaesl no longer have any ownership interest in fisets of Neonode

AB, including any tax net operating loss carryforasa

Utilization of the net operating loss and tax credirryforwards is subject to an annual limitatthre to the ownership percentage change limitapoogided
by Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code andasistate provisions. The annual limitation maguléin the expiration of the net operating lossed tax credit
carryforwards before utilization. As of December 2013, the Company has not completed the detetimmaf the amount to be limited under the prowisio

As of December 31, 2013, the Company did not reizegb526,000 and $26,000 of federal and state @&feax assets relating to excess tax benefits for
stock-based compensation deductions. Unrecognigledrdd tax benefits will be accounted for as dicte additional paid-in capital when realizedahgh a

reduction in income taxes payable.
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Effective January 1, 2007, we adopted the provssmfraccounting guidance which includes a two-siggroach to recognizing, deeognizing and measuril
uncertain tax positions accounted for in accordavitie accounting guidance. A reconciliation of th@ecognized tax benefits for the years ended Deeef1l, 2013,
2012 and 2011 is as follows:

Balance at January 1, 201: $ -
Additions for tax positions of prior yea -
Reductions for tax position of prior ye: -
Additions based on tax positions related to theesuryeai -
Decrease- Settlement: -
Reductions Settlement: -

Balance at December 31, 201 $ -

Balance at January 1, 201: $ =
Additions for tax positions of prior yea -
Reductions for tax position of prior yet -
Additions based on tax positions related to theenryeai -
Decrease- Settlement: -
Reductions Settlement: -

Balance at December 31, 201 $ =

Balance at January 1, 201 $ -
Additions for tax positions of prior yea -
Reductions for tax position of prior ye: -
Additions based on tax positions related to theesuryeai -
Decrease- Settlement: -
Reductions Settlement: -

Balance at December 31, 201 $ -

We adopted a policy to classify accrued interedt@amnalties as part of the accrued tax liabilityhi@ provision for income taxes. For the years dnde
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 we did not rezegmiy interest or penalties related to unrecodrtiae benefits.

Our continuing practice is to recognize interest/anpenalties related to income tax matters ionne tax expense. As of December 31, 2013 and 204 2,
had no accrued interest and penalties relateddertain tax matters.

As of December 31, 2013, we had no uncertain taitipas that would be reduced as a result of aelapshe applicable statute of limitations. We db n
anticipate the adjustments would result in a makehiange to our financial position.

Payments related to the license agreement with Samngoration are net of 10% income tax withholdasgrequired by the Japanese government under the
Sweden and Japan international tax treaty (“Taaffjfe The amounts withheld may be used to offaaire payables for income tax in Sweden. In thesyeaded
December 21, 2013, 2012 and 2011, $42,000, $12200&78,000 was withheld, respectively. Any unusads withheld under the Tax Treaty expire fivargeafter
the initial withholding date.

We file income tax returns in the U.S. federalgdiction, California and Sweden. The 1998 through3®tax years are open and may be subject to paltent
examination in one or more jurisdictions. We arecwrently under any federal, state or foreigroime tax examinations.

14. Employee Benefit Plans

We participate in a number of individual definechtbution pension plans for our employees in Swedfée contribute five percent (5%) of the emplogee’
annual salary to these pension plans. Contribsitietating to these defined contribution planstfieryears ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 20E1$484,000,
$139,500 and $50,000, respectively. We match Urfpl@yee contributions to a 401K retirement plartayqp maximum of six percent (6%) of the employesiaual
salary. Contributions relating to the matching 4Gdiutributions for the years ended December 313 20111 2012 were $66,000 and $26,900, respectiwly.did not
make any matching contributions to U.S. employeEkdplans in the year ended December 31, 2011.
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15. Net Loss Per Share

Basic net loss per common share for the years eddedmber 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 was computed/layrdy the net loss by the weighted average
number of shares of common stock outstanding duhegear. Diluted loss per common share is conapoyedividing net loss by the weighted average nemab
shares of common stock and common stock equivaterissanding during the year.

Potential common stock equivalents of approximabeymillion, 4.7 million and 5.4 million outstamdj stock warrants, 11,000, 52,000 and 55,000 shares
issuable upon conversion of preferred stock andnll®n, 1.7 million and 19,000 stock options @&ecluded from the diluted earnings per share cafion for the
years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 ciasbg due to their anti-dilutive effect.

(in thousands, except per share amot Years ended December !

2013 2012 2011
BASIC AND DILUTED
Weighted average number of common shares outsta 35,26¢ 33,00: 26,78¢
Net loss $ (13,080 $ (9,287) $ (17,145
Net loss per shares basic and dilt $ (0.37) $ (0.28) $ (0.69)

16. Quarterly Financial Information

For the Quarter Ende
March 31, June 30 September 3( December 31
(unaudited, in thousands except per share amc

2013
Net revenue $ 54¢ $ 1,082 $ 1,07¢ $ 1,00¢
Cost of revenue 16 662 76E 19¢
Gross margit 532 422 311 81C
Net loss (3,570 (3,120 (3,349 (3,047
Basic and diluted loss per shi $ 0.1) $ 0.09 $ 0.09 $ (0.0§)
2012
Net revenue $ 1,16¢ $ 197¢ % 167¢ $ 2,32(
Cost of revenue 24¢ 494 337 38t
Gross margit 91¢& 1,48( 1,342 1,93¢
Net loss (1,58¢) (3,427) (2,149 (2,12¢)
Basic and diluted loss per shi $ (0.0 $ 010 $ (0.0 $ (0.09)

Quarterly and year-to-date computations of peresharounts are made independently. Therefore, theo§per share amounts for the quarters may neeagr
with the per share amounts for the year.

17. Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated subsequent events thtioeigling date of this Annual Report on Form 10dfd determined that no subsequent events have
occurred that would require recognition in the adidsited financial statements or disclosure inrthes thereto other than as discussed in the a@oyimy notes.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.

ITEM A CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Under the supervision of and with the participatdrour management, including our Chief Executiféder and Chief Financial Officer, we evaluateé th
effectiveness of our disclosure controls and pragesi(as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15@)1&d-15(e) under the Exchange Act) as of Decerdbg2013.
Based upon that evaluation, our Chief Executived®ffand Chief Financial Officer concluded that digclosure controls and procedures are designadestsonable
assurance level and are effective to provide redserassurance that information we are requiretisidose in reports that we file or submit under EBxchange Act is
recorded, processed, summarized, and reportedhiithitime periods specified in the SEC’s rules fanhs, and that such information is accumulatedi an
communicated to our management, including our Chiefcutive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, ggpropriate, to allow timely decisions regardinguieed
disclosure.

In designing and evaluating disclosure controls giodedures, our management recognized that artyotand procedures, no matter how well desigmet
operated, can provide only reasonable, not absalateirance of achieving the desired control objestand management necessarily was requiredoly ap
judgment in evaluating the c-benefit relationship of possible controls and pdwres.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportirg

There were no changes in our internal control émancial reporting during the quarter ended Decendi, 2013 that have materially affected, or are
reasonably likely to materially affect, our interoantrol over financial reporting.

Report of Management on Internal Control over Finarcial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finah@aorting as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 151
under the Exchange Act.

A control system, no matter how well designed aperated, can provide only reasonable, not absalstirance that the control system’s objectivesbeil
met. Further, the design of a control system meftect the fact that there are resource constradgsause of the inherent limitations in all cohgystems, no
evaluation of controls can provide absolute assigrdmat all control issues and instances of fridwhy, within our Company have been detected.

Under the supervision and with the participatiomof Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financiaffioér, our management assessed the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting as of Batber 31, 2013. In making their assessment, ouagemnent used criteria established in the framewnitkternal
Control — Integrated Framewoiksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizaf@@SO) of the Treadway Commission (1992 framewdised upon that
assessment, our management concluded that ounahtemtrol over financial reporting was effectag of December 31, 2013.

The effectiveness of our internal control over ficial reporting as of December 31, 2013 has beditealiby KMJ Corbin & Company LLP, our independent
registered public accounting firm, as stated inirtfeport included elsewhere in this Annual Report.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Stockholders
Neonode Inc

We have audited the internal control over finanmalorting of Neonode Inc. and subsidiaries (thertpany”) as of December 31, 2013, based on criteria
established ininternal Control - Integrated Framewor1992) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Omgditns of the Treadway Commission (COSO). The
Company’s management is responsible for maintaieffertive internal control over financial repogirand for its assessment of the effectivenesstefrial control
over financial reporting, included in the accompagyReport of Management on Internal Control overaRcial Reporting. Our responsibility is to exprassopinion
on the Company’s internal control over financigloging based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the statwdof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti8d@nited States). Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonablerasse about whether effective internal controlrdirencial reporting was maintained in all materespects. Our
audit of internal control over financial reportimgluded obtaining an understanding of internaltc@rover financial reporting, assessing the rtskt a material
weakness exists, testing and evaluating the desidroperating effectiveness of internal controkldaan that risk, and performing such other procesias we
considered necessary in the circumstances. Wevbehat our audit provides a reasonable basisuoopinion.

A company’s internal control over financial repodiis a process designed to provide reasonablesasguregarding the reliability of financial repogt and
the preparation of financial statements for extiepouaposes in accordance with accounting princigkeserally accepted in the United States of AmeAceompany’s
internal control over financial reporting includb®se policies and procedures that (1) pertaihéariaintenance of records that, in reasonablel detaurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositionshaf assets of the company; (2) provide reasorssslerance that transactions are recorded as ngctsgarmit
preparation of financial statements in accordanitie accounting principles generally accepted intinéted States of America, and that receipts aqepditures of tr
company are being made only in accordance withoaiztitions of management and directors of the caowyipand (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized asigjon, use, or disposition of the company’s ass$eat could have a material effect on the findrste@tements.

Because of the inherent limitations, internal colndwer financial reporting may not prevent or @¢taisstatements. Also, projections of any evatunatif
effectiveness to future periods are subject taiiethat controls may become inadequate becauskasiges in conditions, or that the degree of campé with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Neonode Inc. and subsidiaries naaied, in all material respects, effective interc@itrol over financial reporting as of Decembey 3113,
based on criteria establishedimernal Control - Integrated Framewoi2992) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Omgdiuns of the Treadway Commission
(COSO0).

We have also audited, in accordance with the stdsd the Public Company Accounting Oversight Blo@/nited States), the consolidated balance shéets
Neonode Inc. and subsidiaries as of December@®13 and 2012, and the related consolidated statsmépperations, comprehensive loss, stockhc' (deficit)
equity and cash flows for each of the three yeathe period ended December 31, 2013 and our rdptetl March 5, 2014 expressed an unqualified opioiothose
consolidated financial statements.

/sl KMJ Corbin & Company LLI

Costa Mesa, California
March 5, 2014
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ITEM" 5THER INFORMATION

9B.
None
PART Ill
'1T0EM DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNA NCE

The information required by this Item will be indeed in our definitive proxy statement for the 2@dhual Meeting of Stockholders and is incorporated
herein by reference.

ITEM  EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
11.

The information required by this Item will be indied in our definitive proxy statement for the 2@d#hual Meeting of Stockholders and is incorporated
herein by reference.

ITEM  SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS
12.

The information required by this Item will be indied in our definitive proxy statement for the 2@d#hual Meeting of Stockholders and is incorporated
herein by reference.

ITEM  CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE
13.

The information required by this Item will be indeed in our definitive proxy statement for the 2@4hual Meeting of Stockholders and is incorporated
herein by reference.

ITEM 14 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this Item will be indled in our definitive proxy statement for the 2@dhual Meeting of Stockholders and is incorporated
herein by reference.

PART IV

'lTSEM EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements of the registare listed in the index to the consolidatedricial statements and filed under Item 8 of thisual
Report.

Financial Statement Schedules

All financial statement schedules are omitted beedbe relevant information is not applicable drpresent in amounts sufficient to require subroissif the
schedule or the required information is shown en¢bnsolidated financial statements and the nhegeto included in this Annual Report.
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Exhibits

Number Description

3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of IncorporatioNeonode Inc., dated April 17, 200%incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.22 of thgistran’s
quarterly report on Form 1-Q filed on August 4, 2009 (file nc-08419))

3.11 Certificate of Amendment, dated December 13, 2(Cincorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1.1 of tegistran’s annual report on Form K filed on
March 31, 2011 (file no.-08419))

3.1.2 Certificate of Amendment, dated March 18, 20incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of theiségnt's current report on Form-K filed on March
28, 2011 (file no.-08419))

3.1.3 Certificate of Correction, dated February 28, 20z orporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1.3 of tegistrant’s annual report on Form 10-K filed on
March 30, 2012 (file no.-08419))

3.2 Bylaws, as amended through December 5, 2(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 of theiségnf' s annual report on Form K filed on April
15, 2008 (file no.-08419))

4.1 Certificate of Designations, Preferences and Righthe Series A and Series B Preferred Stock daammber 29, 2008incorporated by reference
Exhibit 4.1 of the registra’s current report on Form-K filed on December 31, 2008 (file n-08419))

4.2 Certificate of Increase of Designation of SerieBrBferred Stock dated January 2, 20incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 of theiségnt’'s
quarterly report on Form 1-Q filed on October 31, 2011 (file nc-08419))

4.3 Certificate of Increase of Designation of SerieBmBferred Stock dated January 28, 20incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 of theisegn('s
quarterly report on Form 1-Q filed on October 31, 2011 (file nc-08419))

10.1 Form of Common Stock Purchase Warraincorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.20 of thgistran’s annual report on Form =K filed on March 31
2011 (file no. -08419))

10.2 Form of Common Stock Purchase Warrainicorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of thgiserant’s annual report on Form 10-K filed on Mart4,
2013 (file no. -35526))

10.3 Employment Agreement with David W. Brunton, dataty 1, 2010 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 of thgisganfs annual report ol
Form 1(-K filed on March 14, 2013 (file no-35526)) +

104 Consulting Agreement with Per Bystedt, dated Jan8r 2011 iincorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 of thgistran’s annual report on Form -
K filed on March 31, 2011 (file no-08419)) +

10.5 Neonode Inc. 2006 Equity Incentive Plan, as ameffincorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 of thgis&anf's registration statement on Forn-8
filed on November 22, 2013 (file no. -192505)) +

10.6 Form of Option used in connection with the 2006 iBguncentive Plan incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 of thgis&an’s annual report ol
Form 1(-K filed on March 14, 2013 (file no-35526)) +

21 Subsidiaries of the registra

23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing

31.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuao Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act Of 2002

31.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursutao Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act Of 200z

32 Certifications pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 12&0adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sar-Oxley Act of 200Z

101.INS XBRL Instance Documer

101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Docum

101.CAL  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docutr

101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docurh

101.LAB  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Docum

101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doenit

+ Management contract or compensatory plan or agrargt
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regiigthas duly caused this report to be signedsooebalf
by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

NEONODE INC.
(Registrant)

Date: March 5, 2014 By: /s/ David Bruntor
David Brunton
Chief Financial Officer,
Vice President, Financand Secretar

Pursuant to the requirements for the Securitieh&xge Act of 1934, this report has been signed&ydllowing persons on behalf of the registrart amthe
capacity and dates indicated.

Name Title Date

/sl Thomas Eriksso Chief Executive Officerand Directoi March 5, 201¢
Thomas Eriksso (Principal Executive Officer

/s/ David Bruntor Chief Financial Officer, Vice President, Finarand Secretar March 5, 201¢
David Brunton (Principal Financial and Accounting Office

/sl Per Bystec Chairman of the Board of Directors March 5,201
Per Bysted

/s/ John Reardo Director March 5, 2014

John Reardo

/s/ Mats Dahlir Director March 5, 2014
Mats Dahlin
/sl Lars Lindqvis Director March 5, 2014

Lars Lindgvist
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Name

Neonode Technologies A

Neno User Interface Solutions £
Neonode KK

Neonode Americas In

NEON Technology Inc

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT

Jurisdiction

Exhibit 21

Sweder
Sweder



Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference iniRegion Statement Nos. 333-192505, 333-179313,180346, 333-132713, 333-114161, 333-87828, 32283
333-43532, 333-32896, 333-65767, 333-63377, 33-8%9@ 33-59167 on Form S-8 and Registration Statehes. 333-177726, 333-147425, 333-152163 and 333-
153634 on Form S-3 of our reports dated March %42€elating to the consolidated financial stateim@f Neonode Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Compaay{ the

effectiveness of the Company'’s internal controlrdireancial reporting appearing in this Annual Repm Form 10-K of Neonode Inc. for the year enBedember
31, 2013.

/sl KMJ Corbin & Company LL|

Costa Mesa, California
March 5, 2014



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Thomas Eriksson, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on FornKld@fNeonode Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notado any untrue statement of a material fact oit torstate a material fact necessary to makettiteraents
made, in light of the circumstances under whichhsstatements were made, not misleading with regpebe period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemertd other financial information included in tréport, fairly present in all material respects fimancial
condition, results of operations and cash flowthefregistrant as of, and for, the periods preseint¢his report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s)dal are responsible for establishing and maimgjmiisclosure controls and procedures (as defim&kchange Act
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal cowtret financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramnd have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proesdor caused such disclosure controls and proesdoibe designed under our supervision, to ertkate
material information relating to the registrantlirding its consolidated subsidiaries, is made kmtows by others within those entities, partidylduring
the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over finanoiglorting, or caused such internal control oveariitial reporting to be designed under our sup@nvjso
provide reasonable assurance regarding the réfyadilfinancial reporting and the preparation mfancial statements for external purposes in accare with
generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and presenthis report our conclusions about the effectesnof the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the &tiegeriod covered by this report based on sueluation;

d) Disclosed in this report any change in thesteant's internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the registranthost recent fiscal quart
(the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the caéan annual report) that has materially affecteds reasonably likely to materially affect, ttegistrant’s
internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s)dal have disclosed, based on our most recent &vatuof internal control over financial reportirtg,the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee efrégistrant’s board of directors (or persons perfiog the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material waakses in the design or operation of internal obotrer financial reporting which are reasonabigly to
adversely affect the registrant’s ability to reggrtbcess, summarize and report financial inforamgtand

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that inegd management or other employees who have aisamifole in the registrant’s internal control ove
financial reporting.

Date: March 5, 2014

/sl Thomas Eriksso
Thomas Eriksso
Chief Executive Office




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, David W. Brunton certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on FornKldéfNeonode Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notado any untrue statement of a material fact oit torstate a material fact necessary to makettiteraents
made, in light of the circumstances under whichhsstatements were made, not misleading with regpebe period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemertd other financial information included in tréport, fairly present in all material respects fimancial
condition, results of operations and cash flowthefregistrant as of, and for, the periods preseint¢his report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(sjdal are responsible for establishing and maimgjmiisclosure controls and procedures (as defim&kchange Act
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal cowtret financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramnd have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proesdor caused such disclosure controls and proesdoibe designed under our supervision, to ertkate
material information relating to the registrantlirding its consolidated subsidiaries, is made kmtows by others within those entities, partidylduring
the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over finanoggorting, or caused such internal control oveariirial reporting to be designed under our sup@njso
provide reasonable assurance regarding the réfyadilfinancial reporting and the preparation mfancial statements for external purposes in accare with
generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and presenthis report our conclusions about the effectesnof the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the &tiegeriod covered by this report based on sueluation;

d) Disclosed in this report any change in thestegnt's internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the registranthost recent fiscal quart
(the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the caéan annual report) that has materially affecteds reasonably likely to materially affect, ttegistrant’s
internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s)dal have disclosed, based on our most recent &vatuof internal control over financial reportirtg,the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee efrégistrant’s board of directors (or persons perfiog the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material waakses in the design or operation of internal obotrer financial reporting which are reasonabigly to
adversely affect the registrant’s ability to reggrtbcess, summarize and report financial inforamgtand

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that inegd management or other employees who have aisamifole in the registrant’s internal control ove
financial reporting.

Date: March 5, 2014

/sl David Bruntor

David Brunton

Chief Financial Officer, Vice President, Financel
Secretary




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATIONS PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANESOXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the annual report of Neonode (ttee “Company”) on Form 10-K for the fiscal yearded December 31, 2013 as filed with the Secsiritie
and Exchange Commission (the “Report”), the undersi principal executive officer and principal ficgal officer of the Company, each hereby cersfylely for
purposes of 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adoptedignirso Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act &22@hat to my knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefttion 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Securitieshaxge Act of 1934, as amended;

2. The information contained in the Report fairly mnets, in all material respects, the financial cbadiand results of operation of the Compe

/sl Thomas Eriksso /s/ David Bruntor

Thomas Eriksso David Brunton

Chief Executive Office Chief Financial Officer, Vice President Finance Secretary
March 5, 201+ March 5, 201+

This certification is not deemed filed with the Béies and Exchange Commission and is not to berporated by reference into any filing of the Campunder the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Seesiitct of 1934, as amended, whether made befaftasithe date of the Report, irrespective of aegeagal
incorporation language contained in such filir



